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"OVER THE PAST YEAR, WE HAVE BECOME A
STRONGER COMPANY, A BETTER EMPLOYER,
AND WE HAVE STRENGTHENED OUR
COMPETITIVE POSITION. "
-PIERRE-JEAN BEYLIER, SPEEDCAST CEO

REVENUE
2017

USD $514.2M

2016

USD $218.0M

2015

USD $167.6M

+195%
EBITDA*
INCREASE ON
PRIOR YEAR

EBITDA*
MARGIN

23.8%

UP 480BPS FROM
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NPATA*
PER SHARE

13.5CPS
+41%

*Underlying financial results are intended to exclude items which are non-recurring in nature, such as acquisition-related transaction
costs, integration costs and restructuring costs.
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CHAIRMAN’S
LETTER
JOHN MACKAY, AM

2017 was a transformative year for Speedcast as we became
the largest remote communications services provider in the
world, following the Harris CapRock transaction that closed
on 1 January 2017. We drove the integration of Speedcast
and Harris CapRock to build a platform with unmatched
scale and capabilities – positioning our Group well for
future growth in 2018 and beyond. As Company Chairman,
it is my pleasure to present the Speedcast International
Limited (‘Speedcast’) annual report.

WE DROVE THE INTEGRATION OF SPEEDCAST
AND HARRIS CAPROCK TO BUILD A PLATFORM
WITH UNMATCHED SCALE AND CAPABILITIES

Today Speedcast serves customers in more than 100
countries around the world. To keep ahead of the market
and meet the needs of our customers we are changing
our role from just being a satellite services provider to
becoming a communications partner. We are a leading
force on the global communications landscape making
use of 70+ satellites and 40 teleports, fibre, and cellular
networks, and the ability to customize end-to-end
managed solutions – leading to strategic, long-term
partnerships with our customers.
Despite a difficult operating environment in 2017,
Speedcast significantly grew both revenue and EBITDA
organically and acquisitively thanks to a sound growth
plan, a talented team and focused execution. We made
innovative moves to enhance our product portfolio and
expanded our footprint and infrastructure to enable
Speedcast to provide best-in-class services and support to
our customers throughout 2018.

WE ARE CHANGING OUR ROLE FROM JUST
BEING A SATELLITE SERVICES PROVIDER TO
BECOMING A COMMUNICATIONS PARTNER

I would like to acknowledge the service of our Directors,
staff and management team led by Mr. Pierre-Jean Beylier,
our CEO, and thank them for their dedication to Speedcast.
Thank you for your vision, leadership and your dedication
to our team and company. Most of all I want to thank our
customers for their trust and confidence in Speedcast to
deliver the critical communications that are essential to
their business operations.
As we head into 2018 we will continue to value feedback
from our customers and employees to help build on the
success of last year and generate profitable growth for our
investors.

John Mackay AM
Chairman
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S REPORT
PJ BEYLIER, CEO

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
Three years ago we set out on a journey to transform our
company into the world’s premier remote communications
provider. I am proud to say that Speedcast now leads our
industry in global reach and capabilities, with a network
that crosses land and sea and spans satellite, cellular, and
fibre networks.
Customer demands are driving significant developments
in our industry and changing the landscape for
communications providers. Digitalization, IoT, and
automation have made high-quality connectivity the
foundation of business operations. Our customers now
want reliable and worldwide services from a single service
provider across all their locations globally.

MILESTONES FROM LAST YEAR
The acquisition of Harris CapRock on 1 January 2017 has
enabled the consolidation of key services, networks, and
teams into one global platform, thus building Speedcast’s
position as the global leader in remote communications.
Speedcast acquired UltiSat in November 2017, creating a
fourth engine of growth for us with the Government sector.
Speedcast’s service offering gives our customers access
to an unmatched network of networks: global satellite
coverage leveraging different orbits and frequencies,
complemented with fibre, microwave, and LTE networks.
Around the world, we provide 24/7 coverage for more than
2,000 customers in more than 100 countries via 40 teleports
and 70+ satellites.

In addition to the expertise that it takes to run a global
network, we serve our customers as a strategic partner –
using a well-trained eye for innovation and technology
opportunities to help our customers stay ahead of
their competition.

SPEEDCAST NOW LEADS OUR INDUSTRY IN
GLOBAL REACH AND CAPABILITIES, WITH A
NETWORK THAT CROSSES LAND AND SEA
AND SPANS SATELLITE, CELLULAR, AND
FIBRE NETWORKS.

KEY OPERATIONAL & FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
From a financial perspective, our full year 2017 results
showed revenue of USD $514.2M, a 136% increase over
2016. We saw corresponding EBITDA growth of 195%
(USD $122.6M). EBITDA margin surged to 23.8% (FY16:
19.0%) reflecting the impact of cost synergies from the
integration of Harris CapRock and operational leverage
from increased scale.
Our 2017 results include two months of UltiSat
contribution, a transaction completed on 1 November
2017. Revenues of USD $14.1M and EBITDA of USD $2.4M
are included in the Speedcast full year 2017 results.
Excluding UltiSat, Speedcast delivered USD $500.1M in
revenues and USD $120.2M in EBITDA.
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CEO REPORT (CONTINUED)

Speedcast declared a final dividend of AUD 4.80cts per
share, bringing 2017 total dividend to AUD 7.20cts per
share, a 75% year-on-year increase in the overall
dividend payment.
In 2017, Speedcast Maritime revenues saw strong organic
growth as more than 650 new VSAT services were activated
for Commercial Maritime customers. Speedcast now
provides communication services to more than 9,500
vessels globally. With the acquisition of Harris CapRock
in January 2017, Speedcast now provides service to
approximately 70% of cruise passengers around the world,
serving the two top global cruise fleets in addition to
several smaller fleets.
Speedcast Energy revenues stabilised during 2017 as
Energy companies continued to rely on Speedcast’s
communication solutions for their sites that remain in
operation. During the year, our customers started planning
for scalability as they await the sector’s upswing over the
next 12 to 18 months.
The Enterprise and Emerging Markets (EEM) division grew
slightly thanks to contributions from the Harris CapRock
acquisition. After a difficult year in 2017, it is well positioned
for growth in 2018 and beyond. The large contract won in
early 2018 with NBN in Australia will contribute significantly
to revenue growth in 2018.
On 1 November 2017, Speedcast completed the acquisition
of UltiSat which positions the Group well in the global
government sector as defence budgets are expected to
grow globally.
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Charting communications Solutions for Commercial
Maritime Operations
Commercial Maritime is a core part of our Maritime
business. Speedcast uses combinations of VSAT and landbased 4G/LTE signals to deliver communications across
oceans and along the most rugged coastlines in the world.
One of our key priorities this year has been to help
customers manage their connectivity and optimise their
network at critical moments and locations. Our Maritime
division has been enhancing business operations by
decreasing boatyard time with better monitoring and
reporting through IoT (Internet of Things). We’ve also
increased our focus on value-added solutions crafted for
the cloud Maritime ecosystem and to enhance the onboard experience for crew members.
Developing Cruise & Ferry Technology Opportunities
The win in 2017 of a key new customer, Fred. Olsen, won
from our largest competitor in the Cruise market, confirms
our status as the preferred partner in the industry. We
are excited by the rapid innovations happening in this
market segment, as connectivity on-board is evolving
with enhanced customer experience technologies, such as
wearables, premium connectivity offerings, more devices
on-board, live streaming, and more.

CEO REPORT (CONTINUED)

Leading Enterprise and Emerging Markets
During 2017, our EEM division that includes telecom,
utilities, mining, broadcast and media services, reinforced
its strong position in the Pacific, South America, and the
Sub-Sahara region. We appointed a new EEM division
Executive Vice President and two regional Vice Presidents,
all with first-class industry experience, to lead the way
into 2018.
The telecom sector, including cellular backhaul,
represented more than 38% of our EEM total revenues
in 2017 with key wins in Asia, Africa, and Latin American
rural markets. We believe this market will continue to grow
strongly in 2018.
Following the acquisitions of ST Teleport Pte and NewCom
International Inc. in 2016, Speedcast enhanced its
broadcast and media offering by building a dedicated team
and portfolio of services to target this important vertical.
Securing Government & NGO Connections
Speedcast continues to provide converged voice, video
and data services with robust security features for effective
government and defence personnel communications along
their entire chain of command. Our recent acquisition of
UltiSat, a high-touch remote communications provider,
accelerated our growth in the Government and InterGovernmental Organizations (IGO) sector. We aim to
leverage UltiSat’s experience serving the U.S. government
as we expect spending to rise to nearly USD $5B annually
for government and defence satellite communications.
Preparing for a Revitalized Energy Market
After the Energy sector’s serious downturn over the past
several years, we have seen signs of stabilisation in 2017,
and expect a recovery to slowly begin in 2018. As the
market leader in the Energy sector, Speedcast is wellpositioned for the upturn. We currently serve the top
players in all segments of the industry: drilling, engineering
services, and production.
Our global presence and infrastructure allows us to assess
customer needs, design and implement networks, maintain
on-board IT systems, troubleshoot issues, and provide
support either remotely or onsite to help our customers
efficiently manage global resources.
Successfully Integrating Harris CapRock
Speedcast teams around the world produced an
exceptional effort to integrate Harris CapRock and
Speedcast across all the key functions in the group.
The integration has been remarkably effective, with
synergies expected to exceed USD $30M versus the USD
$24M announced in November 2016. I want to thank all
Speedcasters around the world for making that extra effort
and managing a challenging workload.
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CEO REPORT (CONTINUED)

Investing in People — Our Most Valuable Asset
In 2017, we continued to emphasize the importance of our
values — being Customer-Focused, Agile and Responsive,
achieving Success Through People & Safety, and Team
Spirit (C.A.S.T.). As we integrated our teams and networks, I
personally witnessed numerous examples of collaboration,
agility, responsiveness, and customer focus. Our culture
has become a competitive advantage to better integrate
acquisitions, to retain and attract talented individuals, and
to connect with our customers.

OUR VALUES:
• CUSTOMER FOCUSED
• AGILE & RESPONSIVE
• SUCCESS THROUGH PEOPLE & SAFETY
• TEAM SPIRIT

Our global workplace standards program, Project Nirvana,
and our newly launched corporate social responsibility
initiative, the Give Back program, are evidence of
Speedcast’s dedication to our people and the world we
live in.
Setting A New Standard in Connectivity
Over the past year, we have become a stronger company,
a better employer, and we have strengthened our
competitive position. The global platform we have built
has unique scale and capabilities. We plan to increase
our investment in research & development to stay at the
forefront of new technologies and generate more value for
our customers.
The momentum in our Maritime, EEM and Government
divisions and the return to slight growth in our Energy
business bode well for a successful 2018.
Looking back at our journey so far, I am proud of our
accomplishments and of the company we have been
building. I thank our customers for their trust, the Board
of Directors for their continued support, and the entire
Speedcast team for their dedication and passion.
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Our efforts in 2017 transformed Speedcast into the global
leader in remote connectivity, and our continued focus on
creating a superior customer experience will guide us
in 2018. As we look ahead, I am excited to build on the
unique platform we have created, and to bring new and
innovative solutions to our customers and increased value
for our shareholders.

Pierre-Jean Beylier
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director

The Critical Communications Company

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Speedcast ANNUAL REPORT 2017 | 11

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

John Angus Mackay
Independent
Non-executive Director
Chairman

• John was appointed to the Speedcast Board in 2013 as an Independent Nonexecutive Director, and appointed as Chairman in 2014.
• John has over 15 years of experience as a Chairman and Director of major
companies across the communications, utilities, health, construction, and
education sectors.
• John is currently the Chairman of ASX-listed CommsChoice Group Ltd and a
Director of Energy Action Limited.
• Previously, John held the role of Chairman of TransACT Communications, a regional
integrated telecommunications and subscription TV operator. John was the
Chairman and CEO of ACTEW Corporation and CEO, Chairman and founder of its
joint venture with AGL. Earlier in his career, John held a number of senior roles in
the Australian federal public service.
• John has been a Chairman or Director of several charitable, arts, and sporting
boards. He was Chancellor of the University of Canberra and Chairman of the
Strategic Advisory Board of the National Arboretum Canberra.
• John was appointed a Member of the Order of Australia in 2004, and was named as
Canberra Citizen of the Year in 2008. John holds Bachelors of Arts (Administration)
and Economics and an Honorary Doctorate from the University of Canberra.

• Michael Berk is a Managing Director of TA Associates, and has been a Director of
Speedcast since its acquisition by the TA Associates Funds in 2012.
• On behalf of TA Associates, Michael currently serves as a Director of Truck Hero Inc.
(‘THI’), the Professional Warranty Service Corporation and Towne Park.
• Previously, Michael was a Director of Microban International and Triumph
HealthCare.
• Michael holds a JD (cum laude) from Harvard Law School, an MBA from Harvard
Business School, and a Bachelor of Arts (magna cum laude) from Harvard University.

Michael Stuart Berk
Non-executive Director
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INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Grant Scott Ferguson
Independent
Non-executive Director

Peter Edward Jackson
Independent
Non-executive Director

Michael Martin Malone
Independent
Non-executive Director

• Grant was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of Speedcast in
2013. Grant is also Chairman of the Audit, Business Risk and Compliance Committee.
• Grant has more than 15 years of experience in the telecommunications industry.
Previously, Grant was the CEO of Astro Overseas Ltd, where he was responsible for
the development and management of the Astro Group’s international business.
• While CEO of Astro Overseas, Grant was concurrently the CFO of Astro All Asia
Network Plc, one of Asia’s leading integrated multimedia groups.
• Prior to that role, Grant was a Managing Director at sovereign wealth fund Temasek
Holdings, where he was responsible for overseeing the development of the fund’s
telecommunications and media investments.
• Grant has also held the roles of CFO of Total Access Communications in Thailand and
Treasurer for the First Pacific Group in Hong Kong.
• Grant currently serves as an advisor to and Non-Executive Director of a number of
businesses across Asia covering a variety of industry sectors.
• Grant commenced his career with PricewaterhouseCoopers working in the
United Kingdom, United States, and Hong Kong, where he held a series of senior
management positions.
• Grant is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Scotland and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

• Peter was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of Speedcast
in 2012, and is also currently the Chair of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.
• Peter has more than 40 years of experience in the satellite and telecommunications
sectors. He is currently a Non-Executive Director of AsiaSat, where until 2012 he
was Executive Chairman. He joined AsiaSat as CEO leading the company through its
1997 listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Peter is also a former Director of the
Cable & Satellite Broadcasting Association of Asia.
• Prior to joining AsiaSat, Peter spent 20 years with Cable and Wireless.
• Peter is currently a member of the Advisory Board of Thuraya Telecommunications,
a mobile satellite operator in Dubai, a consultant to CITIC, and a member of the
investment committee of a private equity firm.
• Peter has previously held the role as Director and Chairman at Daum, a public
company that is a large internet provider in South Korea.

• Michael Malone was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
Speedcast in May 2014.
• Michael is the founder and former CEO of ASX-listed internet provider iiNet, a
position he held from 1999 to 2013.
• Michael served as the President of the Western Australian Internet Association from
1996 to 2002.
• Michael is also the former Deputy Chairman of Autism West.
• Michael was a winner of the Western Australian Information Technology and
Telecommunications awards lifetime achievement award in 2005, and in 2006 was
awarded the Business News Award for the most outstanding business leader in
Western Australia under 40, and the Young Leader of the Year award for the JML
Australia Human Capital Leadership Awards.
• Michael holds a Bachelor of Science and a Diploma of Education from the University
of Western Australia.
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INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Edward Francis Sippel

• Edward is a Managing Director of TA Associates, and Co-Head of TA Associates in
Asia. Edward focuses on investments in companies in the Asia Pacific Region.
• Edward has been a Director of Speedcast since its acquisition by the TA Associates
Funds in 2012. On behalf of TA Associates, he also serves on the board of Fisher
Funds in New Zealand, Yarra Capital in Australia, Yeepay in China, and was formerly a
Director of Nintex in Australia and Forgame in China.
• Prior to joining TA Associates, Edward was a partner at two private equity funds,
Quadrangle Capital Partners and TVG Capital. In this capacity Edward served on the
Board of Directors of many public and private companies globally, including several
in Australia such as Request Broadband and Power Tel, an ASX-listed entity which
was later acquired by Telecom New Zealand/AAPT.
• Edward holds a BA from Georgetown University.

Non-executive Director

Pierre-Jean “PJ”
Joseph Andre Beylier

• PJ joined Speedcast in 2000 as Head of Sales and Marketing. He was appointed Chief
Executive Officer of Speedcast in 2004. PJ has been instrumental in developing and
executing the strategy to create the leading satellite service provider in the industry
through both acquisitions and organic growth.
• PJ has over 20 years of experience in international sales and marketing across Black
and Decker in France, and at Rhodia, a French manufacturer of specialised industrial
chemicals where he held a number of roles including export sales manager for one
of the divisions, responsible for Southern and Eastern Europe, Middle East, and
Africa, and then managed key e-business projects in the Group.
• PJ graduated from Lyon School of Management and received a MBA from the
University of Southern California.

Chief Executive Officer,
Director

• Andrew is a qualified chartered secretary and experienced governance adviser.
• He is a CPA, Fellow of the Governance Institute of Australia and Member of the
Australian Institute of Directors.
• Andrew has acted as Company Secretary for a range of ASX-listed companies across
a broad range of industries.
• Andrew is based in Melbourne and advises Speedcast on company secretarial
practice and procedures and governance matters.

Andrew William Metcalfe
Company Secretary
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
Speedcast’s core business vision is to be a leader in the
provision of remote communications and IT services
worldwide by focusing on creating value for customers
through delivering high quality, innovative, and tailored
solutions with exceptional customer service. Key to the
strategy is the ability to retain flexibility to react to changes
in customer needs and industry trends.

Professional Services
Professional Services are the provisioning of technical
manpower and expertise to Speedcast’s customers. This
includes providing personnel directly to client sites,
installations supporting client owned IT and telecom
equipment, and locally based technical support to
customers with sites in remote or challenging regions.

Speedcast provides products and services in the following
categories:

Systems Integration
Speedcast has three decades of experience in designing
and integrating multiple complex telecommunication
and IT systems. We provide project management and
systems integration services to public safety, utility, oil
and gas, and maritime clients with operations around the
world. The Group also offers turnkey systems integration
of communication, security, and crew morale solutions
developed with robust engineering, analysis, design, and
project management processes and tools.

Network Services
Managed services for VSAT, cellular, wireless, and fibre
networks through our technology-agnostic, customised
communications service. Design, deployment, operation,
and maintenance of networks, including installation
and equipment configuration. Key determinants of the
network service are the availability of satellite capacity,
the proximity of core infrastructure required to deliver the
service, and the skilled personnel to complete the network
design, systems integration, regulatory compliance, and
follow-up maintenance and support during the lifetime of
the service.
Value Added Services
Speedcast offers its customers a range of value-added
services, such as user applications (cyber security, email,
voice, video conferencing, video surveillance), network
optimisation (firewalls, filtering, data compression),
and network monitoring and management (including
reporting tools and remote access for IT technicians).
Product innovation is the key to success, achieved through
the ability to rapidly prototype, test, and productise new
products for the Speedcast portfolio.
Equipment Sales
Speedcast sells equipment directly to customers, including
the very small aperture terminal (VSAT) terminals, modems,
routers and other types of equipment related to the
provisioning of value-added services. The ability to certify
new and existing equipment on Speedcast’s network is
critical. This requires skilled personnel, testing facilities, and
the ability to anticipate future market demand.
Wholesale Voice
Speedcast sells wholesale voice services to telecom
customers via the sale of voice minutes on a wholesale
basis, which are then re-sold to the end user. These services
require a highly redundant carrier-class network backed
with skilled personnel to manage, maintain, and operate.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

•
•
•

•

•

Total revenue of USD $514.2M and Underlying EBITDA
of USD $122.6M in 2017.
Triple-digit year-on-year revenue growth of 136% and
Underlying EBITDA growth of 195%.
Underlying EBITDA margin surged to 23.8% (FY16:
19.0%) reflecting the impact of cost synergies from the
integration of Harris CapRock and operational leverage
from increased scale.
2017 includes two months of UltiSat contribution, a
transaction completed on 1 November 2017. Revenues
of USD $14.1M and Underlying EBITDA of USD $2.4M
are included in the Speedcast Full Year 2017 results.
Excluding UltiSat, Speedcast delivered USD $500.1M in
revenues and USD $120.2M in Underlying EBITDA.

KEY DEVELOPMENTS
Fiscal year 2017 has been transformative for Speedcast.
Significant changes to the business include:
Global Presence
• Our expanded footprint and infrastructure is unique
in our industry. Our enhanced capabilities combined
with our global scale enables us to deliver innovative
solutions and world-class support to customers in more
than 100 countries.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY DEVELOPMENTS (CONTINUED)

Major Acquisitions
• With the acquisition of Harris Caprock in January 2017,
Speedcast is now the market leader in the key Energy
and Maritime verticals.
• Speedcast provides services to approximately 70% of
cruise passengers around the world, serving the two
top global cruise fleets in addition to multiple smaller
fleets. It also serves a wide portfolio of longstanding
and established Energy customers.
• On 1 November 2017, Speedcast completed the
acquisition of UltiSat which positions the Group well
in the Government sector, just as defense budgets are
expected to grow globally.
• These acquisitions have allowed Speedcast to increase
its reach to customers in North America, Europe, Brazil,
Indonesia, and parts of Africa, and provide a strong
platform to deliver critical communications globally.
Financial Performance
• Group revenues grew by 136% and service revenues
increased by 157%; with the acquisition of Harris
CapRock contributing strongly and UltiSat contributing
2-months of revenues.
• The year saw some challenging market conditions in
some verticals (e.g. Energy), which generated higher
than expected revenue churn.
Expansion of Maritime Business
• In 2017, Speedcast Maritime service revenues saw 193%
growth with the integration of Harris CapRock.
• Organically, the division experienced mid-teens growth
as more than 650 new VSAT services were activated for
Commercial Maritime customers
Gradually Recovering Energy Business
• 2017 Energy revenue growth of close to 500% was
driven by the impact of the Harris CapRock acquisition.
• 2017 saw four consecutive quarters of stable revenues
as Energy companies continued to rely on Speedcast’s
communication solutions for their sites that remain in
operation.
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EEM Positioned to Grow
• Enterprise and Emerging Markets division grew slightly,
thanks to contributions from the Harris CapRock
acquisition.
New Products and Services
• Speedcast TV On Demand™ is an innovative
infotainment solution providing entertainment and
information to employees and passengers anywhere in
the world: on cruise ships, energy platforms, and land
sites.
• SIGMA Gateway Xtreme is a network device capable
of managing both VSAT networks and 4G/LTE services.
SIGMA Gateway Xtreme delivers the ultimate in
reliability and redundancy, and is designed to withstand
harsh environments while delivering high availability
and performance.
• GO4SPEED: This new product provides 4G/LTE global
data service outside of our satellite network, and
enables the customer to receive the strongest, most
reliable signals available.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS AND RESULTS
Likely developments in the operations of the Group have
been included in the Operating and Financial Review. The
Group is presently focused on consolidating its operations
to ensure an effective operating model, and the results for
2018 are expected to achieve a reasonable increase over
2017.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
The Group’s operations are not regulated by any significant
environmental regulations in any of the operating
countries.

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

MEETING OF DIRECTORS
During the financial year, 10 Board, 5 Audit and Risk Committee and, 1 Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings
were held. Attendances by each Director and sub-committee member during the year were as follows:

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF OFFICERS
During the financial year, Speedcast International Limited paid a premium applicable to the period from 1 January to 31
December 2017 of USD $171,500 (2016: USD $49,405) to insure the Directors and Officers of the Company and its worldwide
controlled entities.
The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be brought
against the officers in their capacity as officers of entities in the Group, and any other payments arising from liabilities incurred
by the officers in connection with such proceedings. This does not include such liabilities that arise from conduct involving
willful breach of duty by the officers or the improper use by the officers of their position or of information to gain an advantage
for themselves or someone else or to cause detriment to the Group.
It is not possible to apportion the premium between amounts relating to the insurance against legal costs and those relating to
other liabilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The Remuneration Report is set out on pages 31 to 42, which forms part of this Directors’ Report.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.
Non-audit services
The Board of Directors, in accordance with advice from the Audit and Risk Committee, are satisfied that the provision of
non-audit services during the year is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the
Corporations Act 2001. The Directors are satisfied that the services disclosed below did not compromise the external auditor’s
independence for the following reasons:
• All non-audit services are reviewed and approved by the Audit and Risk Committee prior to commencement to ensure they
do not adversely affect the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and
• The nature of the services provided do not compromise the general principles relating to auditor independence in
accordance with APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants set by the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standard Board.
The following fees were paid or payable to the external auditors for non-audit services provided:

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on
page 43.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIVIDENDS

In addition to the above declared dividends, on 26 February 2018, the Board approved a final dividend of AUD 4.80 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2017. The dividend will be paid on 23 May 2018 to all shareholders registered on the
record date of 9 March 2018. The ex-dividend date for dividend entitlement will be 8 March 2018. The dividend will be fully
franked for Australian taxation purposes.
The final dividend of AUD 4.80 cents per share brings the 2017 total dividend to AUD 7.20 cents per share, a 75% year-on-year
increase in the overall dividend cash payment.

SHARE OPTIONS
At the date of this report, the unissued ordinary shares of Speedcast International Limited under options are as follows:

265,876 shares were issued in the year in relation to the vesting of options under the RMR scheme. 255,410 rights related to
the LTIP 2014 scheme vested on 31 December 2017 and shares remained unissued as at 31 December 2017.
Option holders do not have any rights to participate in any issues of shares or other interests in the Company or any entity.
For details of options issued to Directors and other Key Management Personnel as remuneration, refer to the Remuneration
Report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
On 1 March 2018, 377,781 shares were issued in full settlement of the 2014 LTIP scheme and partial settlement of the RMR
scheme. Refer to note 12.
Other than the above, there have been no other material post balance sheet events since 31 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS
The Company is of a kind referred to in the ASIC Legislative
Instrument 2016/191 issued by the Australian Securities
and Investments Commission, relating to the “rounding
off” of amounts in the Directors’ Report and financial
statements. Amounts in the Directors’ Report and financial
statements have been rounded off in accordance with that
class order to the nearest thousand dollars.
This Directors’ Report and the Remuneration Report are
signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors.

Pierre-Jean Beylier
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director
29 March 2018
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overview

2018 OUTLOOK

Highlights of the Group’s operating and financial
performance during 2017 and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

The Group expects to continue to organically grow both
revenue and EBITDA in 2018, achieved through growth
trends in Maritime, strong wins and activations in EEM, and
a gradual return to growth in the Energy sector.

•

•
•

•

•

•

•

•

Speedcast achieved significant growth across all P&L
metrics. Group revenues grew 136% to USD $514.2M
and Underlying EBITDA reached USD $122.6M, up 195%
year on year.
Underlying EBITDA margin continued to improve and
reached 23.8% in 2017 (+480bps year on year) through
the effective delivery of cost and operating synergies.
2017 saw the acquisitions of Harris CapRock and UltiSat.
The addition of Harris CapRock has allowed the Group
to reach leading market positions in both the Energy
and Maritime verticals, while UltiSat provides Speedcast
with a fourth pillar of growth with its new Government
vertical.
The successful integration of Harris CapRock will
allow the Group to generate more than USD $30M of
synergies in 2018, in excess of the original investment
case.
The Maritime business generated 193% service revenue
growth, driven by the integration of the Cruise business
of Harris CapRock and the strong organic growth in
the legacy Speedcast business. Speedcast activated
650 new vessels over the period, supported by the
migration of our Commercial Maritime customers from
narrowband to broadband systems.
The growth of Energy revenues was mainly driven
by the integration of Harris CapRock, which has
transformed Speedcast into the global leader in the
Energy sector. The division posted four consecutive
quarters of stable revenues in 2017 and is starting to
reap the benefits of Speedcast’s global platform, as
demonstrated by the win of the Noble Drilling contract
in early 2018.
EEM has grown slightly, due primarily to the
contribution of Harris CapRock. On a like-for-like basis,
revenues decreased due to higher churn than expected
and delays in the implementation of significant projects.
In early 2018 Speedcast signed a landmark AUD 107M
contract with NBN in Australia, which could generate up
to AUD 184M in revenue over a 10-year period.
An interim fully franked dividend of AUD 2.40 cents per
ordinary share was paid on 13 October 2017 for the
six months ending 30 June 2017 and a fully franked
dividend of AUD 4.80 cents per ordinary share was
declared for the six months ending 31 December 2017;
the dividend equates to 29% of underlying NPATA,
which represents an increase of 75% of the previous
years’ dividend.
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Key growth drivers include:

•

•

•

•

In Maritime, a very strong backlog of over 950 VSATs
in merchant shipping and promising medium-term
growth potential in Cruise, with customers planning for
much higher bandwidth for both guests and crew.
EEM will benefit from around USD $30M of revenues
expected from the NBN contract, growth in cellular
backhaul and good momentum in Latin America and
Africa, where Speedcast is winning more large projects.
Return to moderate revenue growth in Energy, expected
to be realised later in 2018 due to the full year effect
of churn in 2017 and early 2018. Systems integration
revenues are expected to continue to grow in 2018 as
customer investment slowly returns. The successful
integration of Harris CapRock also provides the Group
with a strong global platform for future market share
gains.
The recently acquired UltiSat business will benefit from
the momentum in the US Government sector where
demand is expected to recover strongly. 2018 revenues
will also include the full year contribution of the UltiSat
acquisition which contributed just two months of
revenue and EBITDA to the 2017 numbers.

The strategic acquisitions made over the past 24 months
have positioned Speedcast solidly in key markets with
strong or improving underlying growth fundamentals in
Energy, Cruise, Commercial Maritime, Government and
Cellular Backhaul.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Overview of Divisions

•

Nabors in South America: Speedcast was selected by
Nabors Industries Ltd. (NYSE: NBR) (“Nabors”) to provide
new IT communications equipment and cloud-based
connectivity services to 40 land-based sites in Ecuador,
Colombia, Venezuela and Argentina. Speedcast
delivers communications to the remote land-based
sites throughout South America, supported by the
company’s 24x7x365 global customer service centres.

•

Odebrecht in Brazil: Speedcast was chosen to update
the complete connectivity solution for Odebrecht
Oil and Gas, upgrading services on all rigs to a high
throughput satellite (HTS) solution

•

Diamond Offshore Renewal: A long-time customer,
Diamond Offshore renewed its fully managed voice and
data communications services under a new agreement.
Speedcast’s service model yields increased flexibility to
better allocate bandwidth as the rigs’ communications
requirements change and as Diamond Offshore’s
operations move from one region of the world to
the next. Diamond Offshore’s rigs – a combination of
drillships and semisubmersibles – are located across the
Gulf of Mexico, North Sea, Brazil and Asia Pacific.

•

Other Activity: A fully-integrated Energy multinational
corporation in Malaysia renewed and expanded a
36-month contract for VSAT on its fleet of drilling rigs
and platforms in the Asia-Pacific region.

•

Other Activity: Speedcast won a new Systems
Integration project in the Mediterranean Sea.

SPEEDCAST HAS FOUR KEY PILLARS OF GROWTH:
ENERGY, MARITIME, ENTERPRISE & EMERGING
MARKETS AND GOVERNMENT. DURING
2017, SPEEDCAST ESTABLISHED A STRATEGIC
PLATFORM FOR PROFITABLE GROWTH.
GRADUALLY RECOVERING ENERGY BUSINESS
_________________________________________
Summary
The Energy sector continued to be impacted by oil price
instability, environmental concerns and regional political
instability in 2017. Although demand began to increase,
and U.S. producers increased production, macroeconomic
conditions continued to be a challenge and the industry
remained relatively stagnant overall.
Despite sluggish activity, Energy companies continue to
rely on Speedcast’s networks for their sites that remain in
operation and continue to invest in ways to maximise the
effectiveness of their communications networks as they
await an upswing in the next 12 to 18 months. We have
seen the beginning of a return of operations in the onshore
Energy sector, while offshore activity is slower to follow suit.
With the acquisition of Harris CapRock, Speedcast became
the global market leader in the sector with an on-theground presence in all major Energy regions.
Prior to the Harris CapRock acquisition, Energy was
the smallest division in the Group, contributing 16% of
Speedcast’s service revenues in 2016. Immediately postacquisition, the sector represented Speedcast’s highest
revenue stream, with approximately 45% of total revenues.
Business Growth
• Noble Drilling Global Fleet: Speedcast was selected
by Noble Corporation plc (“Noble”) to provide new
communications equipment and fully-managed
connectivity services to their global drilling fleet.
Through a combination of satellite VSAT and 4G/LTE
services in key regions, Speedcast will deliver end-toend managed communication services to Noble’s fleet
of vessels and rigs beginning in 2018. The solution
includes a technology change-out of the fleet’s entire
hardware infrastructure, with installations of dualband antennas and the latest modem technologies to
maximise throughput, security and redundancy. Noble
will also benefit from segmented operational and crew
networks to optimise efficiency and network availability.

Business Challenges
The stagnant nature of the Energy industry environment
limited growth opportunities in 2017. Although some
customers began ramping up resources and increasing
activity, many companies have remained hesitant to invest
in new technologies or additional infrastructure until a
more positive outlook is evident. Speedcast was able to
keep its customers in this sector, in addition to winning
new business from other providers in 2017.
Outlook
According to Rigzone, “with OPEC, Russia and other nonOPEC producers agreeing on Nov. 30, 2017 to extend their
oil production restraints through 2018, energy analysts
expect a market rebalance in the second half of 2018.”
This market rebalance sets positive expectations for oil
prices in 2018, which in January tipped over USD $66 per
barrel. While much of the Energy industry is optimistic
and hopeful for positive movement in 2018, there are
many uncertainties which hinder experts’ ability to make
confident claims about the next 12 months. With these
macro-economic indicators improving, the outlook for
medium term growth is becoming more positive.
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Speedcast has taken the time to invest in strengthening
and consolidating our global offshore network
infrastructure as well as building an updated approach
to a fully-managed, multi-access connectivity offering
that is tailored to customer needs, offering scalability and
flexibility wherever customer assets are in the world. This
gives Speedcast unique scale and capabilities to capture
growth opportunities and enable market share gains.
As Energy companies prepare for the upturn, they require a
partner that can provide strategic direction on new trends
and technologies such as digitalisation and Internet of
Things (IoT).
As the Energy industry activity returns but remains
unsteady, Speedcast is well-equipped to be a strong
consultative partner, helping Energy customers to ramp
up activity or scale down as needed, while maintaining a
reliable network.

ENTERPRISE & EMERGING MARKETS (EEM)
POSITIONED TO GROW
_________________________________________
Summary
The EEM portfolio addresses varied markets, including
cellular operators, civil government, humanitarian, utilities,
mining and media. Speedcast experienced slight revenue
growth in 2017 due to significant churn in 1H. The revenue
growth in 2H was not sufficient to offset 1H churn. The
revenue churn was mainly due to fibre penetration and
strong competition in the Pacific region, and the loss of a
major customer in Indonesia.
Cellular backhaul and rural connectivity solutions are key
growth drivers for EEM. These solutions represented more
than 38% of EEM total revenue in 2017 and are expected
to contribute growth to the division in 2018. According to
NSR, satellite is finally capturing a portion of the massive
growth in global IP traffic due to the arrival of HTS (High
Throughput Satellites), consumer broadband explosion
and backhaul & trunking, which will generate the largest
opportunities for the fixed enterprise VSAT market.
Speedcast is well positioned to take advantage of this
market trend with its focus on rural connectivity in Latin
America and Africa and high-end enterprise customers in
emerging markets.
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Business Growth
• Alpha Telecommunication Mali (Atel): Speedcast’s suite
of cellular backhaul solutions was selected to connect
all remote areas of the country to the Bamako main core
infrastructure, allowing millions of potential consumers
to benefit from voice and data services.

•

Australian Government: Speedcast was chosen to
provide mission-critical remote communication services
to Antarctic research stations which conduct scientific
and environmental research.

•

Iquitos: Speedcast is delivering network services to
cellular operators and enterprise customers in areas of
Peru where high performance internet is badly needed,
enabling a host of latency-intensive and bandwidthhungry applications, as well as opening the door to
economic development.

•

Save the Children: Speedcast was chosen to provide a
network of over 40 sites in Africa.

•

NBN: The 10-year NBN contract signed in early 2018 to
provide enterprise connectivity in Australia will make
a significant contribution to EEM revenues in 2018 and
beyond.

Business Challenges
Speedcast EEM serves regions and markets which are
regularly affected by natural disasters, wars, political
instability, or are in underdeveloped rural territories.
As in 2016, there is evidence of over-supply of bandwidth
globally, which applied price pressure in some markets.
Speedcast has worked to mitigate the impact of this risk
by re-negotiating many of its capacity contracts and by
continuing its longstanding technology agnostic approach.
Outlook
We expect EEM to be the fastest growing division in 2018
with key focus areas being cellular backhaul, mining, and
media. We have hired additional resources to focus on
these verticals.
Some price erosion is expected but will be offset by volume
growth and market share gains.
Cellular backhaul is expected to continue experiencing
strong growth while new opportunities are appearing in
the media, mining and Government services business. The
addition of UltiSat will bring new business opportunities in
the humanitarian and Civil Government sectors, including
NGOs, rural connectivity, education, health, transport and
infrastructure.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

MARITIME: CONTINUED GROWTH IN THE CRUISE
SECTOR AND EXPANSION OF COMMERCIAL
MARITIME
_________________________________________
Summary
Speedcast now provides service to approximately 70% of
the cruise passengers around the world, serving the top
two global cruise fleets, in addition to multiple smaller
fleets. The main drivers of revenue growth in this segment
comes not only from winning new customers, but also
the rapid increase in bandwidth demands onboard cruise
vessels. Passenger and crew connectivity needs are at an
inflection point and driving bandwidth growth. Speedcast
is also working with our customers to support new
applications such as wearables.
Cruise passenger rates rose from 24.7 million to 25.8
million passengers from 2016 to 2017. More importantly,
on-board bandwidth demands are rising, as passengers
increasingly expect the same connectivity on-board as
they enjoy at home. Cruise passengers expect to maintain
a connection with friends and loved ones while away, in
addition to wanting the ability to stream data-rich content.
As a result, cruise operators are working with Speedcast to
increase bandwidth significantly to ensure a positive guest
experience. Currently, the highest throughput delivered to
a single ship is approximately 520 Mbps, achieved in 2017.
Speedcast is positioned to deliver much more than that
number in 2018.
In 2017, the Commercial Maritime market continued to see
migration from narrowband to broadband connectivity,
amidst improving macro-economic conditions. Key factors
that will differentiate Speedcast in the marketplace will be
the development of value-added services (VAS). All major
service providers offer basic value-added services, and the
most innovative providers will continue to grow their VAS
portfolio further to accommodate ever-changing customer
needs.
Business Growth
• Harris CapRock Brings in Cruise Market Share: Prior
to the Harris CapRock acquisition, Speedcast did not
have a large Cruise business. Today the Cruise segment
represents close to 20% of overall Speedcast revenues
and has seen steady growth in 2017.

•

Fred. Olsen Cruise Ship Fleet: UK-based Fred. Olsen
cruise lines selected Speedcast to provide end-to-end
communication services for voice and data on-board its
fleet of four cruise ships. The integration of both satellite
and land-based infrastructure allows Fred. Olsen to
optimise the use of their ships’ on-board networks,

and deliver a high-quality customer experience. The
network also provides reliable connectivity to connect
Fred. Olsen offices with their ships sailing anywhere
around the globe.

•

Extension of Royal Caribbean Cruise Lines Global
Fleet: Speedcast extended its contract with the largest
consumer of satellite bandwidth in the cruise industry,
Royal Caribbean Cruise Lines. As part of the agreement,
Speedcast will be further increasing the bandwidth
delivered across 37 ships.

•

VSAT Installations: In 2017, Speedcast activated 650
new VSAT services for customers, which included more
than 150 Fleet Xpress activations. Speedcast has a
strong backlog of customers waiting for VSAT service
installations in 2018, a majority coming from Fleet
Xpress.

•

SIGMA Product Family Expansion: Speedcast
strengthened its VAS portfolio by expanding the SIGMA
family with the introduction of SIGMA Gateway Xtreme.

•

Prioritising Cybersecurity: Speedcast announced a new
cybersecurity service for Speedcast SIGMA customers.
Cybersecurity has become an essential need for many
shipping companies and for the maritime industry
in general, especially after several industry players
announced cybersecurity breaches in 2017.

Business Challenges
The cruise industry is relatively concentrated, meaning
that long-standing partnerships must be developed and
nurtured to build trust with key customers.
In addition, technology challenges are significant for cruise
operators. Modem technologies struggle to keep up with
the advanced bandwidth demands of passenger ships.
Major opportunities exist to provide connectivity services
to smaller segments, such as expedition and river cruise
ships, however, service availability in the remote regions
where such ships sail is often a challenge with today’s Cand Ku-band satellites, LTE access and required antenna
equipment.
As the Commercial Maritime industry becomes more
digitalised, the demand for reliable, always-on services
continues to grow. Ship operations require consistent
connections to shipping company headquarters to run
fleets in optimal fashion, and cloud-based operations will
become more common in shipping.
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Besides operational efficiency, crew connectivity is
becoming an essential service. Crew members increasingly
expect shipping companies to provide Internet connection,
voice calls and video call capabilities. People are connected
ashore and expect the same experience of being able to
connect with friends and family when on-board.

Outlook
Since the cruise industry has experienced good growth in
recent years (7% annual average passenger growth rate),
customers typically have growing budgets for innovative
ways to increase passenger satisfaction, in addition to
growing bandwidth requirements. To meet this demand,
Speedcast has invested in strengthening and consolidating
our global network infrastructure.
Speedcast is also building an updated approach to a
fully-managed, multi-access technology connectivity
offering that is tailored to specific customer needs, offering
scalability and flexibility wherever ships sail. Upcoming
technologies, such as flat-panel antennas and new
satellite constellations, offer a possible solution to current
challenges in the expedition and river cruise markets. In
addition, Speedcast continues to invest in value-added
services, such as entertainment content for guests and
crew, cybersecurity solutions and network optimisation
techniques that customers will be able to use to improve
their on-board passenger experience and create more
value.
Speedcast is a leading service provider in commercial
maritime. Our technology-agnostic approach aims to solve
customer connectivity challenges by offering multiple
solutions for variable connectivity situations and providing
the flexibility and reliability customers seek from a service
provider.
Speedcast is building upon its robust suite of value-added
services, such as extended SIGMA capabilities, 4G/LTE
solutions, cybersecurity, remote security, telemedicine,
entertainment, training, and remote video streaming/CCTV.
With our significant local presence around the world, we
are well-positioned to serve all major commercial maritime
customers globally.
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GOVERNMENT GROWTH WITH RISE IN
GLOBAL SPENDING
_________________________________________
Summary
UltiSat experienced strong performance in 2017. The full
year revenues were higher than expected (USD $83.9M vs
USD $78.5M forecasted) demonstrating good dynamics in
the Government sector. UltiSat’s 2-month contribution to
Speedcast’s 2017 financials was USD $14.1M in revenue
and USD $2.4M of EBITDA.
Business Growth
With the acquisition of UltiSat, Speedcast foresees
significant growth in its Government business in the
medium term. We now have access to U.S. Government
opportunities which were not available to us previously.
UltiSat is also positioned to leverage all of Speedcast’s
global capabilities.
Speedcast will leverage UltiSat solutions to create Global
Government opportunities while increasing its presence in
the NGO/IGO space.
Business Challenges
The 12-month budget cycles that provide funding for
the U.S. Government, including potential government
shutdowns, could cause challenges within the sector
slowing down opportunities and impacting available
budgets.
Outlook
According to Northern Sky Research, the global
Government market is expected to grow to USD $9.3B in
revenue by 2025, up from USD $4.4B in 2015.
There is increasing demand by the U.S. Government for
satellite communications driven by:

•
•
•
•
•

Increased broadband connectivity needs.
Operation of manned and unmanned aerial vehicles.
Monitoring of locations on a global level for treaty
compliance and other applications.
Regions of high military activity (Middle East, SW Asia,
NE Asia, Africa).
Requirements within North America for training and
backup purposes.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS RISKS
The Group takes a proactive approach to risk management.
The Board is responsible for ensuring that business risks
are identified quickly and that appropriate risk mitigation
steps are taken in a proactive and timely manner. The
Board assesses the risks with the Group’s overall strategic
objectives and activities in mind. Current key risks
identified for the Group are:
Speedcast financial targets are compromised by
ongoing global reduction in bandwidth costs
Global bandwidth costs continue to decline. This is caused
by bandwidth oversupply, technological innovation, and
increased competition. These reductions may impact
Speedcast’s future financial performance.
Consolidation of the satellite service industry could
change the competitive landscape
The satellite service industry is undergoing a period of
consolidation. Some of Speedcast’s distributors have
been acquired by competitors and Speedcast anticipates
that other distributors of its services may be acquired by
competitors in the future.

Risks relating to acquisitions
Speedcast has historically experienced rapid growth
through acquisitions. This growth has placed, and may
continue to place, significant demands on management,
information reporting resources, and financial and
internal controls and systems. In addition, Speedcast’s
ongoing performance depends on the effective and timely
integration of acquisitions. Speedcast also expects to
make future strategic acquisitions in circumstances where
the Directors believe that those acquisitions support
Speedcast’s growth strategy and will create value for the
Group’s shareholders.
Foreign exchange rates
Speedcast’s financial reports are presented in United States
dollars. However, a substantial proportion of Speedcast’s
sales revenue, expenditures and cash flows is generated in
various other currencies, including Australian dollars and
Euros. Further, as Speedcast expands its operations it is
expected that it will be exposed to additional currencies.
Any adverse exchange rate fluctuations or volatility in the
currencies in which Speedcast generates its revenues and
cash flows, and incurs its costs, would have an adverse
effect on Speedcast’s future financial performance and
position.

Satellite service providers face competition from
a range of communications services and new
technologies
Satellite communication competes with a number of
different methods of transmission, including fibre-optic,
Wi-Fi and WiMax. As competing networks expand, satellite
communication’s competitive advantage in providing
connectivity to users outside established networks is
reduced.
Geo-political risks
As a consequence of the geographic areas that Speedcast
operates in, the Group is exposed to geopolitical and
strategic risks. These risks have increased as the Group
has grown larger and moved into new markets. The risks
include disruption as a result of war, civil unrest, security
issues and government intervention. These risks exist
predominantly in the Middle East, Russia and certain parts
of Latin America, Africa and Asia.
Loss of, or inability to attract, key personnel
Speedcast’s success depends to a significant extent on its
key personnel. There is significant competition for strong
candidates with experience in the satellite services industry,
and this competition is expected to increase. The loss of
key personnel or the inability to recruit personnel, may
adversely affect Speedcast’s future financial performance.
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW OF THE GROUP’S PERFORMANCE
Statutory reconciliations
The underlying financial results have been presented to provide a better understanding of Speedcast financial performance
and are intended to exclude items which are non-recurring in nature, such as acquisition-related transaction costs, integration
costs and restructuring costs.

There was no difference between underlying and statutory revenue.
Non-IFRS measures such as EBITDA and NPATA have also been presented to provide a better understanding of the Speedcast
financial performance.
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Statutory reconciliations (continued)

•

•

•
•

•

•

Underlying revenues increased by 136% to USD
$514.2M (2016: USD $218.0M). The revenues in 2017
include the full contribution of the Harris CapRock and
UltiSat acquisitions that closed on 1 January and 1
November 2017 respectively.
Underlying EBITDA of USD $122.6M was up 195%
on prior year (2016: USD $41.5M). EBITDA margin
continued to improve from 19.0% to 23.8% as
integration synergies and economies of scale are
realised.
Underlying NPATA increased to USD $45.6M, compared
to USD $19.2M in financial year 2016, an increase of
137% year on year.
Underlying depreciation and amortisation was
significantly higher than the comparative period
due to the inclusion of the 2017 acquisitions (Harris
CapRock and UltiSat) and the full year impact of 2016
acquisitions (USAT, ST Teleport, NewCom and the WINS
group).
The increase in underlying net finance costs is reflective
of the increase in the average debt level in 2017 as a
consequence of the additional debt drawn to fund the
2017 acquisitions.
Statutory net cash flows from operating activities,
including payment for financing costs and any
applicable taxes increased 190% to USD $79.1M (2016:
USD $27.3M).
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REMUNERATION REPORT

This Remuneration Report details remuneration
information as it applies to Speedcast Group Key
Management Personnel (“KMP”) for the year ended 31
December 2017 in accordance with the requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 (the Act) and its regulations.
This information has been audited as required by section
208(3C) of the Act. Our remuneration disclosures aim to
maintain a high standard of clarity and transparency in
communications with all stakeholders. The KMP referenced
throughout this report are listed below.

Non-Executive Directors
John Angus Mackay
Michael Stuart Berk
Grant Scott Ferguson
Peter Edward Jackson
Michael Malone
Edward Francis Sippel
Executive Directors
Pierre-Jean Joseph Andre Beylier, Chief Executive Officer
Other KMP
Richard Frank Carden
Executive Vice President,
			Integration
Piers Cunningham 1
Executive Vice President,
			Maritime
Chung Wai Kit 2 		
Senior Vice President,
			Operations and Engineering
Keith Johnson		
Chief Operating Officer,
			Executive Vice President,
			Energy
Ian Baldwin		
Chief Financial Officer
Andrew Burdall 3		
Executive Vice President,
			
Enterprise & Emerging Markets
Athina Vezyri 4		
Executive Vice President,
			Maritime
David Kagan 5		
Chief Operating Officer
Erwan Emilian 6 		
Executive Vice President,
			
Enterprise & Emerging Markets
1
Piers Cunningham ceased as Executive Vice President, Maritime on 20 September 2017
2 Chung Wai Kit no longer deemed to be in Key Management Personnel as of 31 May 2017
3 Andrew Burdall resigned as Executive Vice President,
Enterprise & Emerging Markets on 18 October 2017
4 Athina Vezyri promoted to Executive Vice President, Maritime on 1 January 2017
5 David Kagan joined Speedcast on 6 March 2017 and
resigned as Chief Operating Officer on 1 December 2017
6 Erwan Emilian joined Speedcast on 15 September 2017
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Remuneration Policy
The Board's objective is to ensure that Speedcast Group’s
remuneration supports achievement of the Company’s
strategy, and drives performance and behaviours which are
in the Company’s best interests. Remuneration matters are
handled by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
which is a sub-committee of the Board.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
recommends to the Board the remuneration packages
for the KMP on an annual basis. In carrying out its duties,
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee assesses the
appropriateness of the nature and amount of remuneration
on a periodic basis, by reference to relevant local
employment market conditions. The overall objective is to
ensure maximum stakeholder benefits from the attraction
and retention of a high quality executive team. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee forms its own
independent decisions on KMP remuneration.
The key principles which govern the Company’s
remuneration framework are to:

•
•
•
•
•

Link executive rewards to the creation of shareholder
value;
Provide market-competitive remuneration package,
with appropriate balance of fixed and variable
remuneration;
Ensure variable portion of executive remuneration is
dependent upon meeting pre-determined performance
objectives;
Allow for Board discretion to be applied, in order to
ensure that remuneration outcomes are appropriate for
the Company’s circumstances; and
Ensure that performance objectives for variable
remuneration are aligned to the drivers of the Group’s
success and the achievement of overall business
objectives.

REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

KMP incentive arrangement
Speedcast has established a number of incentive arrangements to enable attraction, motivation and retention of KMP of
Speedcast.
The remuneration awarded for 2017 contains the following elements:

•
•
•
•

Fixed remuneration;
Variable remuneration;
Short-term incentive “STI” (Cash Bonus); and
Long-term incentive “LTI”.

The target allocation of KMP remuneration between base salary and variable remuneration (excluding allowances and nonmonetary benefits) for 2017 was as follows.

Fixed remuneration (base salary and fixed allowance) is reviewed on an annual basis taking into consideration individual
performance and competency, the consolidated entity’s performance and market conditions relevant to the role and location.
Both the cash-based short-term incentive and the long-term equity-based incentive are subject to achievement of key
performance indicators “KPI” or hurdles set and assessed by the Board.
For the CEO, the target STI bonus is 50% of base salary, and for other KMP it ranges between 20% and 40% of base salary. Both
Financial and non-Financial Key performance indicators “KPI” are set each year and measured at the end of each year.
The 2017 STI performance measures for the CEO were as follows:
• 40% - Group Revenue
• 40% - Group EBITDA
• 20% - EBITDA Cash Conversion
Portion of target STI paid to CEO: 50%
The 2017 STI performance measures for the Other KMP were as follows:
• 25% - Group Revenue
• 25% - Group EBITDA
• 50% - Role specific quantitative measures, including divisional revenue, contribution margin, DSO and capacity utilisation
targets, among other measure
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Portion of target STI paid to other KMP: 23%
The above measures were chosen as they represent the key milestones on the path to delivering the Group’s strategy.
The Board retains discretion to increase or decrease incentive payments to take account of significant events and/or other factors that
were not anticipated when the targets were established. To the extent that an individual outperforms the ambitious targets set, it is
possible for payout to be received that is in excess of 100% of their STI target.
The Group has very high expectations of Management and sets rigorous targets in each of the performance measures, as it seeks to
continue to drive maximum performance. The table below shows the KMP remuneration compared to key performance indicators of
the Group.

In addition to setting KPIs at a stretch level, the Group also requires the below conditions to be met in order for an individual to become
entitled to receive payments under the STI:

•
•

KMP still employed when bonus is paid;
Group meeting all bank covenants (this operates to ensure that in the pursuit of challenging revenue targets, the executive team is
also required to maintain suitable financial discipline in order to receive any bonus).

The STI is not the exclusive method of providing incentive remuneration for employees of Speedcast Group and the Board has discretion
to provide other forms of incentive remuneration in appropriate circumstances.
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Long-term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
LTIP’s have been established in order to:
• Align the interests of Speedcast’s executives with those of shareholders;
• Encourage outperformance against the market; and
• Encourage the retention of key executives.
Participation in the plan, which is approved by the Board, is based on sustained individual performance and value to the
Company.
For 2014, 2015 and 2017, LTIP awards have been in the form of performance rights, which on vesting entitle the executive to
receive a fully-paid ordinary share in Speedcast, for no consideration. The Board considers that this method of delivering the
LTIP allows for the best alignment between the interests of executives and shareholders, as the value of the LTIP will change in
tune with the Company’s share price. There were no LTIP awards in 2016.
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2017 LTIP Offer
The key terms of the 2017 LTIP arrangement are summarised in the table below:

For the 2017 LTIP award, the Board determined that the relative TSR measure against a comparator group comprising the
ASX/S&P Small Cap index was appropriate for measuring the long-term performance of the executive team, as Speedcast
was competing for investment with other companies in that index. The Board is considering whether a change in comparator
groups is appropriate for future awards.
The Board has determined that linking the remainder of the LTI performance rights to continued service with Speedcast is in
the best interests of retaining the talented executives who are necessary to the achievement of the Company’s strategy.
Speedcast operates in a highly specialised field, and many of its senior executives are based in markets (such as Hong Kong,
USA and certain other key markets) where longer-term incentives are typically linked solely or partially to continued service.
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Legacy LTI - Restricted Management Rights
Restricted Management Rights (“RMR”) were issued by the Company under the equity incentive plan in previous financial
years. The RMR effectively replace certain rights to shares of Speedcast Acquisitions Limited which were issued by Speedcast
Acquisitions Limited to certain employees of Speedcast prior to the Prospectus Date. The issue of RMR in substitution for
existing rights held by Management comprises an additional component of the corporate restructure undertaken during that
year.
The Company made an offer of rights to acquire Shares in the Company to the affected members of Senior Management. The
offer of RMR is made on the terms set out below and pursuant to the Plan Rules.
Further details of the offer are set out below:
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Executive Service Agreements
Remuneration and other employment terms for the CEO and other key management personnel are formalised in a contract of
employment. The main terms and conditions of the contracts are set out below.

Loans to KMP
There are no outstanding loans to KMP as at 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
Non-Executive Directors
The Board decides the remuneration from the Company to which each non-executive Director is entitled for his or her services
as a Director. However, the total amount provided to all Directors for their services as Directors must not exceed in aggregate
in any financial year the amount fixed by the Company in the annual general meeting. This amount has been fixed at USD
$500,000.
For 2017, the annual base non-executive Director fee to be paid by the Company are USD $102,500 to the Chairman,
USD $75,000 to each other non-executive Director and an additional USD $10,000 to the chair of Audit, Business Risk and
Compliance Committee and an additional USD $5,000 to the chair of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
Michael Berk and Edward Sippel do not receive fees for acting as Directors of Speedcast.
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MOVEMENT IN PERFORMANCE RIGHTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

MOVEMENT IN RESTRICTED MANAGEMENT RIGHTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL SHAREHOLDINGS
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration
As lead auditor for the audit of Speedcast International Limited for the year ended 31 December 2017,
I declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:
(a)

no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

(b)

no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Speedcast International Limited and the entities it controlled during
the period.

Andrew Forman
Partner
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Adelaide
29 March 2018

PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 757
Level 11, 70 Franklin Street, ADELAIDE SA 5000, GPO Box 418, ADELAIDE SA 5001
T: +61 8 8218 7000, F: +61 8 8218 7999, www.pwc.com.au
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended 31 December 2017

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Speedcast ANNUAL REPORT 2017 | 47

FINANCIAL REPORT (CONTINUED)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES
This financial report covers the consolidated financial statements and notes of Speedcast International Limited (henceforth “SIL” or
“the Company”), and its controlled entities (the “Group” or “Speedcast”).
During the year, the financial position and performance of the Group was particularly affected by the following events and
transactions during the reporting period.
The Group completed two significant acquisitions in 2017:

•
•

The acquisition of Harris CapRock Comunications (“Harris CapRock”), a leading provider of communications networks for remote
and harsh environments, primarily in the maritime and energy markets, was completed on 1 January 2017. The acquisition funds
were in escrow as at 31 December 2016.
The acquisition of 100% of the share capital of UltiSat Inc. (“UltiSat”), a provider of satellite communication predominantly to the
government sector, was completed on 1 November 2017.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
SIL is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia whose shares are publicly traded on the Australian
Securities Exchange (“ASX”).
The financial report was authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2018. The Directors have the power to amend
and reissue the financial statements.
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. The
financial statements are for the consolidated entity consisting of Speedcast and its subsidiaries.
Where appropriate, comparative information has been amended to be consistent with current year disclosures.
(a) Basis of preparation
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. The Company is a for-profit
entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.
Compliance with IFRS
These financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.
Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the circumstances when fair value
method has been applied as detailed in the accounting policies below.
New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group adopted the following new or revised accounting standards which became effective for the reporting period
commencing on 1 January 2017:

•
•
•

AASB 2016-1: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses;
AASB 2016-2: Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107; and
AASB 2017-2: Further Annual improvements 2014-16.

While these new standards introduce new disclosure requirements within the annual report, they do not affect the Group’s
accounting policies or any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2017
reporting period and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new standards and
interpretations is set out below.
AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB15
AASB 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining the timing and quantum of revenue recognised.
It replaces existing guidance, including AASB 118 Revenue and AASB 111 Construction Contracts. The core principle of AASB 15 is
that an entity shall recognise revenue when control of a good or service transfers to a customer. The standard becomes mandatory
for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard permits a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach to the adoption.
The Group has assessed the impact on its consolidated financial statements resulting from the application of the new standard. The
timing of recognition of revenue and expenses may be affected however the standard is not expected to have a significant impact
on the overall annual revenues or profit. The following areas are identified as having the most impact to the consolidated entity:
• Currently sales commissions payable on winning contracts are expensed as incurred. As these costs are expected to be
recovered over the contracts to which they relate under the new standard these costs will be capitalised and amortised over the
contract;
• Under certain contracts fees are charged for the installation of leased equipment whereas under other contracts there is no
specific charge and the costs are recovered through the ongoing provision of broadband services. The new standard may, in
certain contracts, require an element of revenue to be recognised and held as accrued income on contracts where no specific
fee is chargeable; and
• The new standard requires significant increases in disclosures in relation to revenue derived from contracts, key judgements and
future revenues expected to be generated.
AASB 9 Financial instruments (revised December 2014) and AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014)
AASB 9 replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement. AASB 9 includes revised guidance on the
classification and measurement of financial instruments, including a new expected credit loss model for calculation of impairment
on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. The standard carries forward guidance on recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments from AASB 139. The standard is mandatory for reporting periods commencing from 1
January 2018.
The Group has assessed the impact on its consolidated financial statements resulting from the application of the
new standard:
• With the exception of the provision held against trade receivables, as described below, there is no significant impact on the
classification and measurement of financial assets or liabilities;
• Existing hedge relationships continue to qualify for hedge accounting. No existing relationships will be designated as hedging
relationships following the application of this standard; and
• The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment provisions based on an “expected loss” model, with a
provision to be held based on the probability weighted average of the outcome of recovery of financial assets including
trade receivables. Under the current standard an incurred loss model is applied such that provisions are raised on individual
receivables when it is deemed probable a loss will be incurred. The application of the new standard is expected to result in
an increase to the bad debt provision. The Group is currently assessing the quantum of the provision across all of the entities
within the Group, including the significant acquisitions undertaken in the current and prior financial years, and the interaction
with the new standard and the fair value of the financial assets acquired as assessed under AASB 3.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
AASB 16 Leases
AASB 16 Leases specifies how to recognise, measure and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model,
requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for almost all leases. AASB 16 applies to annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019.
As at the reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable undiscounted operating lease commitments of USD $29,154,000, refer to
note 29. The Group predominantly leases land and buildings for use in its operations. Following the large acquisitions of Harris
CapRock and UltiSat, the Group is in the process of restructuring and optimising its rental portfolio to minimise cash outflow and as
such the Group has not quantified the effect of the new standard, however the following impacts are expected:

•
•
•

•

•

the total assets and liabilities on the balance sheet will increase, as a liability is recorded representing the fair value of future
lease payments and a corresponding asset is also recorded;
a decrease in the Group’s net assets is expected due to the reduction of the capitalised asset being on a straight line basis whilst
the liability reduces by the principle amount of repayments. Net current assets will show a larger decrease due to an element of
the liability being disclosed as current;
the profit and loss of the consolidated entity will be more susceptible to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Entities
within the Group predominantly have USD functional currencies due to the majority of the sales and cost of sales being incurred
in USD. Operating leases tend to be denominated in the currency of the country of operation. The right of use asset is held at
cost and not revalued however the liability is financial in nature so is subject to revaluations through the statement of profit or
loss;
interest expenses of the Group will be higher on application of the new standard due to the unwinding of the effective interest
rate implicit in the initial liability recognised. Interest expenses on a specific lease will be higher early in the life of a lease due
to the higher principal liability and lower later in the life of a lease, hence causing profit volatility over the course of a leases life.
This effect is expected to be partially mitigated due to the number of leases held with varying start and end dates; and
operating cash flows will be higher as repayment of the principle portion of all lease liabilities will be classified as financing
activities.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires Management to exercise its judgment in the process of adopting the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the financial statements are disclosed in note 5.
Rounding of amounts
The Company is of a kind referred to in the ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191 issued
by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating to the “rounding off” of amounts in the Directors’ Report and
financial statements. Amounts in the Directors’ Report and financial statements have been rounded off in accordance with that
class order to the nearest thousand dollars.
Parent entity information
In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, these financial statements present the results of the consolidated entity only.
Supplementary information about the parent entity is disclosed in note 33.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December
2017 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. The Company and its subsidiaries together are referred to in these
financial statements as the ‘consolidated entity’.
Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the consolidated entity has control. The consolidated entity controls an entity when
the consolidated entity is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is gained by the consolidated entity. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the consolidated entity, are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the consolidated entity.
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. A change in ownership interest,
without the loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, where the difference between the consideration transferred
and the book value of the share of the non-controlling interest acquired is recognised directly in equity attributable to the parent.
(c) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional currency
The functional currency for each entity in the Group, and for joint arrangements and associates, is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which that entity operates. For many entities, this is United States Dollars (“US$, “USD” or “US Dollar”) but
for certain entities this is the currency of the country in which they are located.
(ii) Transactions and balances
Transactions denominated in other currencies are converted to the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the date
of the transaction or valuation where items are re-measured. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at year end exchange rates.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income within ‘Other gains/(losses)’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income within ‘Other
gains/(losses)’.

(iii) Presentation currency
The Group’s financial statements are presented in United States Dollars, as that presentation currency most reliably reflects the
global business performance of the Group as a whole. On consolidation, income statement items for each entity are translated from
the functional currency into USD at average rates of exchange where the average is a reasonable approximation of rates prevailing
on the transaction date. The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position items are translated into USD at period end exchange
rates.
Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net assets of entities with functional currencies other than USD are
recognised directly in the ‘Foreign currency translation reserve’. These translation differences are shown as other comprehensive
income in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Business combinations
The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at fair value as at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be a financial liability are recognised in profit and loss
in accordance with AASB 139 Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Where the Group has not finalised the fair value assessment and verifications of individual assets or liabilities of acquired businesses
are in progress as at the reporting date, the fair value of individual assets or liabilities acquired during the current financial year
and the amounts of goodwill to be recorded are based on the Director’s best estimation. Any adjustments will be recorded upon
finalisation of the purchase price allocation, which must occur within twelve months of acquisition date.
(e) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services supplied, net of discounts returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue and costs can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below:
(i) Broadband access revenue
Broadband access revenue includes network services for the provision of VSAT (Very Small Aperture terminal) access and MSS
(Mobile Satellite Services) access and the sale of VOIP (Voice Over Internet Protocol) data as well as the related value-add activities
of the provision of these services. Revenue is recognised as the access is provided or when the related services are rendered.
(ii) Sale of broadband access equipment
Sale of equipment required to connect to the relevant a network is recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when goods are delivered to customers and title is passed.
(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
(f) Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of a business and represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the Group’s interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the noncontrolling interest in the acquiree.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from a business combination upon which goodwill arose. Each cash-generating unit or groups of units
to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(f) Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of cash-generating units are compared to their recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is taken first to goodwill and is recognised immediately as an expense and
is not subsequently reversed.
(g) Intangible assets
Intangible assets have been identified by the Group in the form of customer relationships, supplier contracts, trademarks and brand
names, research and development and software.
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique products controlled by the
Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

•
•
•
•
•
•

it is technically feasible to complete the project;
management intends to complete the project and either use or sell it;
there is an ability to use or sell the asset;
it can be demonstrated how the asset will generate probable future economic benefit;
adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are available; and
the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the asset include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.
Research costs are expenses as incurred unless they are acquired through a business combination. Costs associated with
maintaining intangible assets are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected life of the assets, as follows:
Customer relationships			

4 to 12 years

Supplier contracts			

5 years

Trademarks and Brand names		

4 to 20 years

Software				

1 to 7 years

Research and Development		

6 years

(h) Impairment of assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if indicators of impairment exist. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets, other than goodwill, that have suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(j) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for equipment sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade receivables is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as noncurrent assets.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.
(k) Financial assets
(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
(ii) Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:
• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor; and
• a breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal payments.
The amount of any impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
(l) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the average cost method and
comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable costs necessary to make the sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(m) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income during the financial year in which they are incurred.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, at the following rates per annum:
Office equipment			

5 to 7 years

Plant and equipment			

2 to 17 years

Leasehold improvements		

2 to 10 years

Motor vehicles				

3 to 5 years

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of their expected useful lives or the term of the lease.
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are recognised within ‘Other
gains/(losses)’ or ‘Other expenses’ in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
(n) Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in
the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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(n) Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
(o) Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers and service providers. They are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting is
insignificant and in which case they are stated at historical cost.
(p) Provisions
Provisions for asset retirement obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in a
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
(q) Employee benefits
(i) Pension obligations
The Group participates in defined contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
(ii) Performance-based bonus
The expected costs of performance-based bonuses are recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made.
Liabilities for performance-based bonuses are expected to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when they are settled.
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(q)Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Share-based compensation
The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the equity instruments is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments granted: (i) including any market performance conditions; (ii) excluding the impact of any
service and nonmarket performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets); and (iii) including the
impact of any non-vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of shares that
are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of equity
instruments that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, with a corresponding
adjustment
to equity.
(iv) Leave provisions
The liability for accruing annual leave and long service leave is recognised in ‘Employee provisions’ and measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the
projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures,
and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on high quality
corporate bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
(r) Leases
(i) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
(ii) Finance leases
The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in liabilities. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.
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(s) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
Borrowing costs are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the period in
which they are incurred.
(t) Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at their fair value.
The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

•
•

hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows of recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions; or
hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedges).

At the inception of the hedging transaction the Group documents the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents
its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
have been and will continue to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that qualify as net investment hedges are recognised within the ‘Foreign currency translation
reserve’. Changes in fair value of derivatives that qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised within the ‘Fair value reserve’. Changes
in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately within
‘Other gains/(losses)’ in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
(u) Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options which vest immediately are recognised as
deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
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(v) Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the
entity, on or before the end of the reporting period, but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.
(w) Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share information for its ordinary shares.
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year.
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the basic earnings per share to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.
(x) Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”).
(y) Goods and services tax
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (“GST”), except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the relevant tax authority. Receivables and payables are stated inclusive
of GST.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the relevant tax authority is included as part of receivables or payables in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
Cash flows in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows are included on a gross basis amount and the GST component of cash
flow arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as
operating cash flows.
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(z) Parent entity financial information
The financial information for the parent entity, SIL, disclosed in note 33 has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated
financial statements, except as set out below:
(i) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities are accounted for at cost in financial statements of SIL. Dividends
received from subsidiaries and associates are recognised in the parent entity’s profit or loss when its right to receive the dividend is
established.
(ii) Tax consolidation legislation
SIL and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consolidation legislation.
The head entity, SIL, and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group account for their own current and deferred tax
amounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group continues to be a stand-alone taxpayer in
its own right.
In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, SIL also recognises the current tax liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and tax credits assumed from entities in the tax consolidated group.
The entities have also entered into a tax funding agreement under which the wholly-owned entities fully compensate SIL for any
current tax payable assumed and are compensated by SIL for any current tax receivables and deferred tax assets relating to unused
tax losses or tax credits that are transferred to SIL under the tax consolidation legislation. The funding amounts are determined by
reference to the amounts recognised in the owned entities’ financial statements.
The amounts receivable (or payable) under the tax funding agreement are due on receipt of the funding advice from the head
entity, which is issued as soon as practicable after the end of each financial year.
Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as current amount
receivable from or payable to other entities in the Group.
Any differences between the amounts assumed and amounts receivable or payable under tax funding agreement are recognised as
a contribution to (or distribution from) wholly-owned tax consolidated entities.
(iii) Financial guarantees
Where the parent entity has provided financial guarantees in relation to loans and payables of subsidiaries for no compensation, the
fair values of these guarantees are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
(iv) Share-based payments
The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries in the Group is treated as a
capital contribution to that subsidiary. The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary, with a corresponding credit to equity.
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group does not have formal risk management policies or guidelines. However, the Board of Directors generally adopts
conservative strategies which focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.
Market risk
Foreign exchange risk
The Group trades with international customers and suppliers and is be exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from operating
in various currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises from those transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity entering into the transaction. Foreign currency risk also arises from assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the Group’s entities to which they relate.
The Group operates in an industry for which commercial transactions are primarily denominated in US dollars and as such a
large proportion of the Group’s revenues and costs are denominated in US dollars. The Group’s most significant foreign currency
exposures are in relation to Australian dollar (“AUD”), Euro and Great British Pounds.
Hedge of net investment in foreign entity
During the period, entities within the Group held intercompany loans denominated in US dollars, Great British Pounds, Euro
and Angolan Kwanza which were designated as hedges of a net investment in a foreign entity. In addition, SIL held external
borrowings denominated in US dollars. A portion of these external borrowings were designated as fair value hedges. The
combined net foreign exchange gain on these loans in 2017 of USD $15,220,000 (2016: USD $2,088,000 gain) has been recognised
in ‘Other comprehensive income’ within the ‘Foreign currency translation reserve’. There was no ineffectiveness recorded from net
investment in foreign entity hedges during the period.
Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate risk arises principally from long-term borrowings. Interest
payable on the debt facility is subject to a floating margin component. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. To hedge this risk, and as a requirement of the agreement, the Group entered into interest rate swaps
during the year to partially hedge the cash flow risk.
The interest rate swaps are fully effective, designated hedges and any change in fair value of the hedges are recorded in other
comprehensive income as such any impact of changes in interest rate would have nil impact on the current year reported profit
(2016: USD $1,089,000 decrease in profit).
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following variable rate cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and
interest rate swaps.
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Market risk (Continued)
Fair values
The following table analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation hierarchy:

The different levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices); and
Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
• quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;
• the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable
yield curves; and
• other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.
Only that portion of the deferred consideration that remains contingent as at 31 December 2017 is held at fair value. The fair
value of the contingent consideration is dependent on the unobservable inputs of the risk-adjusted discount rate and expected
forecast financial metrics of the acquired UltiSat business. The forecast metrics of Ultisat exceed the thresholds for the maximum
consideration to be paid, as such the full total of the potential amount payable has been recorded as a contingent liability
discounted at a 6%. An increase in the discount rate by 100 bps would decrease the fair value of the contingent consideration by
USD $192,000.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets, including trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents,
and the Group’s other financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, obligations under finance leases and borrowings,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities. The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current liabilities, including
obligations under finance leases and borrowings, approximate to their fair value as their interest rates approximate to market
interest rates. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.
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Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk of the Group arises from credit exposures to its customers
and cash and cash equivalents. The Group only places cash and deposits with reputable banks and financial institutions.
For credit exposure to customers, the Group trades only with recognised, credit worthy third parties. The Group’s policy is to carry
out credit verification procedures on new customers before grant of credit terms. In addition, the Group may request customers to
make deposits and advance payments before delivery of services or goods. Further disclosure of credit risk of customers is set out
in note 15.
Liquidity risk
The Group regularly monitors current and expected cash requirements, and its compliance with debt covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from banks and other financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. Management believes there is no significant liquidity risk as the Group has
sufficient committed facilities to fund its operations.
The Directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s profit and cash flow projections prepared by Management. The
projections make key assumptions with regard to the anticipated sales, profit margins and cash flows from the Group’s operations.
These assumptions include an assessment of the impact of the uncertainties surrounding the industry but do not include the
potential impact of any significant worsening of the various conditions that the Group is operating in and around the globe. The
Directors, after making due enquiries, believe that there will be sufficient financial resources available to the Group at least in the
coming twelve months to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the Directors consider that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the bank loan facilities may be drawn at any time in either AUD or USD
and have maturity of 2 years (2016: 3 years). The undrawn banking facilities are subject to annual review.
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Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of each year into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. For variable rate borrowings the cash flows have been estimated based on the interest rates applicable
at the end of the reporting period including the effect of designated cash flow hedges.
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to:
• safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders; and
• maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt facilities or sell assets to reduce debt.
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors net debt on the basis of the ratio of net debt to pro forma EBITDA.
Capital management initiatives are undertaken when the ratio is forecast to approach limits imposed by the loan covenants.
Loan covenants
Under the terms of the borrowing facility, the Group is required to comply with financial covenants including the commitment not
to exceed certain financial ratios as measured semi-annually, commencing on 30 June 2017. The following ratios, as defined in the
agreement, have agreed ratios as at 31 December 2017 that must be adhered to:
(i) The ratio of pro-forma underlying EBITDA* to net interest
expenses is not less than 3:1; and
(ii) The ratio of net debt to pro forma underlying EBITDA does
not exceed 3.5:1.
The Group has complied with these covenants to 31 December 2017.
* Pro-forma underlying EBITDA is based on the previous 12 months as if all Group members as at 31 December 2017 were Group
members for the whole of that 12-month period.
Dividends
Relevant information on dividends paid during the year, and approved since the end of the year, has been included in note 25.
The 2017 total dividend declared of AUD 7.20 cents per share represents a 75% year-on-year increase in the overall dividend cash
payment.

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
Accounting estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes assumptions concerning the future and the resulting accounting estimates may, by definition, differ from the
related actual results. The accounting estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.
Recognition and measurement of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in acquisition of a business and
subsidiaries
The determination, and allocation, of the consideration fair value to the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in
business combinations is based on various assumptions and valuation methodologies requiring considerable judgment. For
further information refer to note 2(d).
Useful lives of acquired customer relationships
The Group estimates the period over which customer relationships, recognised through business combinations, are expected
to provide benefit or that similar relationships could be developed the lower of which becomes the useful life over which the
customer relationship is then amortised. The assessment of useful lives at acquisition date, and subsequent reassessments,
involves significant judgement. For further information refer to note 2(g).
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(CONTINUED)
Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes, including the recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for uncertain tax positions, if any, based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. For further information refer to note 2(n).
Consolidation of UltiSat Inc.
100% of the share capital of UltiSat Inc. was acquired on 1 November 2017. The company is managed through a Proxy agreement
as required by the US National Industrial Security Program (“NISP”). The Proxy agreement enables UltiSat to enter into contracts
with the US Department of Defence that contain certain classified information.
The Proxy agreement is an instrument designed to mitigate the risk of foreign ownership, control or influence over a US entity that
has security clearance under the NISP. The Proxy agreement conveys the owner’s voting rights to the Proxy board and places some
restrictions on shareable information and interactions with other Group companies. There are three members of the Proxy Board
that are all US citizens, cleared and approved by the US Defence Security Service (DSS).
The Group maintains its involvement with UltiSat’s activities through normal business activity and liaison with the Chair of the
Proxy Board. The operational and governance activities and results are reviewed by Speedcast management. Speedcast exercises
its right within the Proxy agreement to make suggestions on the running of UltiSat and whilst these suggestions are non-binding
the Proxy Board must act in good faith, as reasonably prudent persons, to protect the legitimate economic interests of Speedcast.
These activities are all performed within the confines of the Proxy agreement such that UltiSat operates its business within the
requirements necessary to protect the US national security interest.
An assessment has been performed in accordance with AASB 10 Consolidated financial statements of whether, for accounting
purposes, the Group controls UltiSat. The Group is exposed to variable returns from its investment in UltiSat and there is deemed
to be sufficient power within the confines of the Proxy agreement for the Group to use its influence to affect those returns. As
such, under AASB 10, it is deemed that the Group controls UltiSat and therefore the results of UltiSat and its subsidiary are
consolidated in to the Group’s consolidated accounts.

Speedcast ANNUAL REPORT 2017 | 69

FINANCIAL REPORT (CONTINUED)

6 REVENUE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

7 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES)

8 STAFF COSTS

9 OTHER EXPENSES
Included within other expenses are the following items:
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10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

Speedcast ANNUAL REPORT 2017 | 71

FINANCIAL REPORT (CONTINUED)

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the applicable tax rate
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates as follows:

The aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period which is not recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income is as follows:
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Restricted management rights
Restricted Management Rights (“RMR”) were issued by the Company under the equity incentive plan on 12 August 2014, the IPO
date. The RMR effectively replaced certain rights to shares of Speedcast Acquisitions Limited which were issued by Speedcast
Acquisitions Limited to certain employees prior to the IPO.
Each RMR entitles the holder to acquire a share for nil consideration at the end of the relevant vesting period, subject to meeting
vesting condition. A total of 1.1 million RMR, representing approximately 0.9% of the issued share capital of the Company, were
issued on 12 August 2014 to the participants at no cost. No exercise price is payable in respect of the RMR.
The offer was divided into tranches of RMR with differing vesting periods. Each tranche of RMR will vest subject to the satisfaction
of the vesting condition over the vesting period relevant to that tranche. The vesting condition is continued employment with the
Group. Vesting will occur over a total period of approximately 4 years from grant date.
The tranches and vesting periods are as follows:
(i) 25% of the RMR will vest 12 months after grant date; and
(ii) Following vesting of first tranche, at the end of each 3-month period another 6.25% of the RMR will vest if the participate
remains in employment with the Company.
The RMR in each tranche will lapse immediately if the vesting condition for that tranche is not satisfied at the end of the relevant
vesting period.
The RMR do not attract dividends, voting rights or any capital distributions.
Participants must not sell, transfer, encumber, hedge or otherwise deal with RMR. If the participant resigns, or the Company
terminates the participants’ employment in accordance with their employment contract, all unvested RMR will lapse, unless
otherwise determined by the Board. In a situation where there is likely to be a change of control, the Board has the discretion to
accelerate vesting of some or all of the RMR. Where only some of the RMR are vested on a change of control, the remainder of the
RMR will immediately lapse.
The weighted average remaining contractual life of RMR outstanding as at 31 December 2017 was 0.3 years (2016: 0.8 years).
The fair value of the RMR granted to employees is deemed to represent the value of employee service received over the vesting
period. Fair value was determined using the Monte Carlo simulation method. The factors considered in the valuation included the
terms and structure of the share scheme, price and volatility of companies in similar industries and any other relevant information
in relation to the shares such as dividend policy.
Long term incentive plan
In 2014, Speedcast established a long term incentive plan (“LTIP”) in order to facilitate remuneration for the Group’s Senior
Management and enhance the alignment of their interests with those of shareholders.
Offers may be made at the Board’s discretion to employees of the Group or any other person that the Board determines to be
eligible to receive a grant under the Plan.
The Plan Rules provide flexibility for the Company to grant one or more of the following securities as incentives, subject to the
terms of individual offers:
(i) Performance rights;
(ii) Options; and
(iii) Restricted shares.
Options are entitlement to receive a share on payment of any applicable exercise price. Performance rights and restricted shares
are an entitlement to receive shares for no consideration.
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Long term incentive plan (Continued)

The Board may make offers at its discretion and any offer document must contain the information required by the Plan Rules. The
Board has the discretion to set the terms and conditions on which it will offer performance rights, options and restricted shares in
individual offer documents. Offers must be accepted by the employee and can be made on an opt-in or opt out basis. Unless the
Board determines otherwise, no payment is required for a grant of a performance right, option or restricted share under the Plan.
In 2017, the Board made offers to the CEO, CFO and other members of Senior Management to receive a grant of the LTIP (“the 2017
LTIP”). The 2017 LTIP award was made on 15 May 2017, and comprised performance rights.
There were no LTIP offers in 2016.
In 2015, the Board made offers to the CEO, CFO and other members of Senior Management to receive a grant of the LTIP (“the 2015
LTIP”). The 2015 LTIP award was made on 9 September 2015, and comprised performance rights.
In 2014, the Board made offers to the CEO, CFO and other members of Senior Management to receive a grant of the LTIP (“the 2014
LTIP”). The 2014 LTIP award was made on 12 August 2014, the IPO date and comprised performance rights.
A performance right entitles the holder to acquire a share for nil consideration at the end of the performance period, subject to
meeting specific performance conditions. The number of performance rights granted will be based on a fixed percentage of the
relevant participant’s annual fixed remuneration and will be issued to the participant at no cost. No exercise price is payable in
respect of the performance rights.
Performance rights granted as part of all LTIP offers will vest subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions. The
performance conditions cover a performance period of at least 3 years.
• the 2017 LTIP performance period commenced on 1 January 2017 and ends on 31 December 2019.
• the 2015 LTIP performance period commenced on 9 September 2015 and ends on 31 December 2018.
• the 2014 LTIP performance period commenced on 12 August 2014 and ended on 31 December 2017.
The performance condition must be satisfied in order for the performance right to vest. For the LTIP schemes:
(i) 50% of the total performance rights will vest subject to the achievement of the Total Shareholder Return (TSR) performance
target for the Company exceeding the performance of the S&P/ASX Small Ordinaries Index (AUD) (Index) over the performance
period and subject to the participant being an employee at the end of the performance period (“TSR component”); and
(ii) 50% of the performance right will vest solely subject to the participant being an employee at the end of the performance
period (“service component”).
If the performance target for the TSR component is not met the Board may at its absolute discretion issue up to 50% of the TSR
component.
Any performance rights that remain unvested at the end of the performance period will lapse immediately.
The performance rights do not attract dividends, voting right or any capital distributions.
Participants must not sell, transfer, encumber, hedge or otherwise deal with performance rights.
If the participant ceases employment for death, permanent disability or is otherwise determined to be a ‘good leaver’ by the Board,
unvested performance rights will vest in full, unless otherwise determined by the Board. If the participant ceases employment
in any other circumstances, all unvested performance rights will lapse, unless otherwise determined by the Board. In a situation
where there is likely to be a change of control, the Board has the discretion to accelerate vesting of some or all of the performance
rights. Where only some of the performance rights are vested on a change of control, the remainder of the performance rights will
immediately lapse.
The fair value of the LTIP rights granted to an employee is deemed to represent the value of employee service received over the
vesting period. The fair value is determined using the Monte Carlo simulation method. The factors considered in the valuation
included the terms and structure of the share schemes, price and volatility of companies in similar industries and any other
relevant information such as dividend policy and expected exercise pattern of the shares.
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12 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)
Movement in performance rights
A summary of the movement in unvested performance rights of the Company’s shared based compensation schemes is as follows:

255,410 rights had vested but were not issued on the 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: nil). The shares related to the 2014
scheme which vested on the 31 December 2017. The shares were issued on 1 March 2018.
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of rights during the year ended 31 December 2017 was AUD 4.18
(2016: AUD 3.56).
Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised during the year in relation to shares issued under the
RMR and LTIP were USD $1,021,000 (2016 : USD $456,000).
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13 OPERATING SEGMENTS
Identification of reportable segments
The Group has identified its operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer that are used to
make strategic decisions. All of the entities within the Group generate income from the provision of broadband access services
and equipment in various geographic markets. The Group has two operating segments, UltiSat, which operates under a Proxy
Board, and the rest of the Group. These segments meet the criteria for aggregation and as such are combined in the results given
below into one disclosable segment.
Geographical information
The table below presents geographical information of total revenue based on customers’ geography, where that relates to a vessel
revenue is included in the Maritime category.

The table below presents geographical information of the Group’s non-current assets.

Major customers
There are no individual customers who contributed more than 10% of the total revenue in 2017 or 2016.

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents includes USD $2,309,000 (2016: USD $1,395,000) which is restricted by legal or contractual
arrangements.
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15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The carrying values of the trade and other receivables approximate their fair values.
The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
USD $51,371,000 were past due (2016: USD $21,827,000) and USD $6,241,000 (2016: USD $4,187,000) were deemed to be impaired
and fully provided for. The impaired receivables mainly relate to customers’ failure to make payment for more than six months
from invoice date.
Movement of the provision for impairment of trade receivables is as follows:

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables has been included in ‘Other expenses’ in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. Trade receivables are generally written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

16 INVENTORIES

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of equipment amounted to USD $13,845,000
(2016: USD $9,526,000).
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assets held under finance leases repayable as at 31 December 2016 included a transponder with a netbook value of
USD $6,127,000. The transponder was fully depreciated in the year to 31 December 2017.
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18 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the recoverable amount of Cash Generating Units (“CGUs”) were determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations used cash flow projections for a 5-year period based on financial budgets approved by the
Directors. The pre-tax discount rate and the terminal growth rate after the 5-year budgeted period applied to the cash flow
projections was approximately 12.0% and 2.0% respectively. The budgeted gross profit margin and net profit margin were
determined by management for the CGUs based on past performance and its expectations for market development.
Discount rates reflect the Group’s estimate of the time value of money and risks specific to each CGU that are not already reflected
in the cash flows. In determining appropriate discount rates regard has been given to the weighted cost of capital of the Group
and business risks.
Management assessment of possible changes in the key assumptions has not identified any reasonably possible changes that
would cause the carrying amount of the CGUs assets, including goodwill, to be higher than the recoverable amount of the CGUs.
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19 DEFERRED TAX
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

The balance comprises of temporary differences attributable to:

The following outlines the expected settlement of deferred tax balances:

The movement on the net deferred tax amounts is as follows:
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19 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)
The deferred tax balance includes an amount of USD $1,583,000 (2016: USD $1,176,000) which relates to carried forward tax losses
of subsidiaries in the Group. For each subsidiary where the losses have been carried forward, Management estimates that future
taxable income will be available to recover the net deferred tax asset in each of these subsidiaries based on the business plans and
budgets.
The following table shows the unrecognised tax losses of the Group

The unused tax losses were incurred by overseas subsidiaries where there is insufficient evidence to support the
generation of taxable income in the foreseeable future. The unused tax losses have increased predominantly due
to the acquisition of Harris CapRock entities.

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables are unsecured and usually paid 30–90 days from recognition.
Deferred consideration is payable on the SAIT and UltiSat acquisitions. A portion of the consideration as at 31 December 2017 is
contingent on the future results of UltiSat, refer to note 34 for further details.
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21 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
At 31 December 2017, the Group had obligations under finance leases repayable as follows:

The carrying value of fixed assets held under finance lease as at 31 December 2017 approximates the present value of lease
obligations. Assets held under finance leases repayable as at 31 December 2016 included a transponder with a netbook value of
USD $6,127,000. The transponder was fully depreciated in the year.

22 BORROWINGS
On 27 December 2016, the Group entered into a new syndicated facility of USD $385M with Credit Suisse AG and ING Bank as
mandated lead arrangers. As at 31 December 2016, USD $381.2M was drawn in USD. The balance, along with existing cash, was
used to fund the acquisition of Harris CapRock, which was settled in 2017.
The limit of the syndicated facility was extended on 3 November 2017 by an accordion facility of USD $60M. Speedcast drew
down on the full amount of the accordion facility, which was used with cash flows generated from operations to fund the
acquisition of UltiSat.
Refer to note 28 for further details regarding these acquisitions.
Interest payable on the new facility is subject to a floating margin component. This exposes the Group to interest rate risk. To
hedge this risk and as a requirement of the agreement, the Group has entered into interest rate swaps contracts refer to note 3.
At 31 December 2017, interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts were due for payment as follows:

82 | Speedcast ANNUAL REPORT 2017

FINANCIAL REPORT (CONTINUED)

22 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Assets pledged as security
The Group has pledged a significant portion of its assets as security against the syndicated facility. The carrying amounts of assets
pledged for borrowings as at 31 December are:

Total assets pledged as security as at 31 December 2016 were greater than the total assets of the Group due to both the presence
of intercompany receivables and investments outside of the obligor group that are held at cost, whereas intangibles arising on
consolidation of entities outside of the obligor group are subject to amortisation.
It is anticipated that underlying assets of UltiSat will be added to the assets pledged as security in 2018.

23 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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24 EQUITY
Contributed equity

The Group does not have a limited amount of authorised capital or par value in respect of its shares.
Accumulated losses

The Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 was paid in April 2017 and an Interim dividend for the year ended 31
December 2017 was paid in October 2017. For details, please refer to note 25.
Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign controlled entity are recognised in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and
accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the net investment
is disposed.
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24 EQUITY (CONTINUED)
Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payments reserve is used to recognise the fair value of options at grant date issued to employees and Directors.
When shares are issued, the amount recognised in this reserve in relation to those shares is transferred to contributed equity.
For information relating to share options including details of options issued, exercised and lapsed during the financial year and the
options outstanding at year end please refer to the Directors’ Report and note 12.
Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve is used to recognise the change in fair value of financial instruments designated as qualifying cash flow
hedges.
Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests reserve is used to record the portion of equity ownership of controlled subsidiaries that are not
attributable to the Group.
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25 DIVIDENDS

On 26 February 2018, the Board approved a final dividend of AUD 4.80 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
dividend will be paid on 23 May 2018 to all shareholders registered on the record date of 9 March 2018. The ex-dividend date for
dividend entitlement will be 8 March 2018. The dividend will be fully franked for Australian taxation purposes.

The above amount represents the balance of the franking accounts as at the end of the period, adjusted for:
(i) Franking credits that will arise from the payment of income tax payable at the end of the period; and
(ii) Franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends provided at the end of the period.

26 EARNINGS PER SHARE
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27 RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX TO NET CASH INFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Current year acquisitions
Harris CapRock
On 1 November 2016, the Group entered into a definitive agreement to acquire 100% of the businesses of Harris CapRock, a
leading provider of communications networks for remote and harsh environments, primarily in the maritime and energy markets.
The initial close was completed on 1 January 2017. The acquisition was funded via a fully-underwritten AUD 295M Accelerated
Renounceable Entitlement Offer, with the balance funded by a fully-underwritten syndicated debt facility. All consideration has
been paid in full in the year.

The goodwill was attributable to the expected future profitability and expertise of Harris CapRock, as well as the synergies
expected to be achieved from integrating the business into the Group. Goodwill of approximately USD $180M is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.
Harris CapRock’s business has been successfully integrated into Speedcast’s operating and cost structure. In addition there has
been significant rationalisation of entities and transfer of sales contracts where Speedcast had a legacy entity operating in the
same jurisdiction, as such it is not possible to disclose the revenue or profit contribution for the period.
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28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)
Current Year Acquisitions (Continued)
UltiSat Inc.
On 23 July 2017, Speedcast entered into an agreement to acquire 100% of the share capital of UltiSat Inc., a leading provider of
remote communications and professional services to Governments and to International Government Organisations and NonGovernmental Organisations. The acquisition closed on 1 November 2017 and the results of UltiSat Inc. are included in the Group’s
results from this date.
The following table summarises the consideration paid, the estimated fair value of assets and liabilities acquired at the
acquisition date.

The purchase price allocation remains provisional as at 31 December 2017 due to the proximity of the acquisition to the year end.
The goodwill is attributable to the expected future profitability and expertise of UltiSat in the government sector, as well as the
synergies expected to be achieved with the Group subject to the confines of the Proxy Agreement. No goodwill is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.
UltiSat Inc. contributed revenues of USD $14,143,000 and profit of USD $112,000 to the Group from the acquisition date to the
end of the year ended 31 December 2017 after making adjustments for the acquisition in accordance with AASB 3 Business
combinations.
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28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)
Prior year acquisitions
United Satellite Group Pty Ltd
On 15 January 2016, Speedcast International Limited, via its 100% owned subsidiary Speedcast Australia Pty Ltd, purchased
100% of the “Business Assets” of United Satellite Group Pty Ltd (“USAT’). The “Business Assets” were defined in the Sale & Purchase
Agreement (“SPA”) as selected contracts, intellectual property rights, and equipment at remote sites. The acquisition has been
assessed to be a business combination for accounting purposes.
The following table summarises the consideration paid, the estimated fair value of assets and liabilities acquired at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill of USD $696,000 is attributable to the synergies with Speedcast’s existing operations in the region as well as the
expected future profitability of the business. No goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes
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28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)
Prior Year Acquistions (Continued)
NewCom International Inc.
On 31 March 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of NewCom International Inc. (“NewCom”), a leading satellite
communications service provider specialising in the South and Central American regions, in accordance with the agreed terms
of the SPA signed on 29 December 2015. NewCom was acquired for consideration of USD $11.3M in cash and USD $2.1M in new
Speedcast shares. The Group gained control with effect from 31 March 2016.
The following table summarises the consideration paid, the estimated fair value of assets and liabilities acquired at the acquisition
date.

Goodwill of USD $12,248,000 is principally attributable to the new growth frontier in the South and Central American regions,
where satellite is widely used and Speedcast did not have a direct presence. No goodwill is deductible for tax purposes.
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28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)
Prior Year Acquistions (Continued)
ST Teleport Pte Ltd
On 4 July 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of ST Teleport Pte Ltd (“STT”), a leading satellite communications provider
based in Singapore, for SGD 18.5M in cash following the definitive agreement announced on 13 November 2015. The acquisition
includes ST Teleport’s world class teleport facilities and data centre infrastructure in Singapore, a major hub in Asia for global
maritime and oil & gas customers.
The following table summarises the consideration paid, the estimated fair value of assets and liabilities acquired at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill of 8,561,000 million arises principally from the strengthening of the Group’s position in the Asia-Pacific region and in
both the Maritime and Energy sectors. No goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
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28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)
Prior Year Acquistions (Continued)
WINS Limited
On 8 August 2016, the Group announced the acquisition of WINS Limited (“WINS”), a leading Europe-based provider of innovative
maritime broadband satellite communications and IT solutions, from Eutelsat Communications and Maltasat.
The following table summarises the consideration paid, the estimated fair value of assets and liabilities acquired at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill of USD $57,284,000 arises principally from the strengthening of the Group’s position in Germany within the important
growth engine of the maritime sector, which Speedcast expects to underpin long-term organic growth. No goodwill is deductible
for tax purposes.
Additional information
Acquisition related costs of USD $9,212,000 (2016: USD $7,001,000) have been charged to transaction related costs in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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29 COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but not yet purchased is as follows:

Operating lease commitments
The Group leases certain of its office premises under non-cancellable operating leases. Leases are normally negotiated for
an average term of 1 to 5 years. The lease expenditure charged in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income during the year is disclosed in note 9.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following transactions were carried out with related parties:
Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel includes the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Operations, Business Unit Heads
and the Board of Directors. Their remuneration included within employee expenses for the year is shown below:
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Key management personnel compensation (Continued)

The Remuneration Report presented at the beginning of the annual report contains details of the remuneration paid or payable to
each member of the Group’s key management personnel for the year ended 31 December 2017.

31 PRINCIPAL OPERATING SUBSIDIARIES
The following is the list of the principal operating subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2017. All entities are engaged in the
provision of satellite communication services:
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32 DEED OF CROSS-GUARANTEE
The parent entity, Speedcast International Limited, and its subsidiaries listed below are parties to a deed of cross guarantee,
executed on the 21 December 2017, under which each company guarantees the debts of the others. By entering into the deed,
the wholly-owned entities have been relieved from the requirement to prepare a financial report and Directors’ report under ASIC
Corporations (Wholly-owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785.
The subsidiaries subject to the deed are:
(i) Speedcast Australia Pty Ltd
(ii) Speedcast Group Holdings Pty Ltd
(iii) Speedcast Managed Services Pty Ltd
(iv) Satellite Communications Australia Pty Ltd
(v) Oceanic Broadband Solutions Pty Ltd
(vi) CapRock Communications (Australia) Pty Ltd
These companies represent a closed group for the purposes of the class order.
The Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
comprising the closed group, after eliminating all transactions between parties to the deed of cross guarantee are shown below.
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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32 DEED OF CROSS-GUARANTEE (CONTINUED)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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33 PARENT ENTITY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The following information has been extracted from the books and records of the parent entity, SIL, and has been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.
The financial information for the parent entity has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated financial statements.
Statement of Financial Position

Profit for the year includes USD $94,265,000 (2016: nil) relating to reversals of previous investment impairments
For details on the contingent liabilities of the parent entity, please refer to note 34.
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34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
SAIT Communications earn-out
On 28 July 2015, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of SAIT Communications Limited (“SAIT”), a leading supplier
of L-band satellite service in the Southern European Maritime market. Part of the total consideration was contingent on the
achievement of certain revenue targets in 2016.
The final contingent consideration due became payable on 1 January 2017 and 1,257,791 shares to be issued with a market value
of USD $3,150,000 on that date were reclassified from a financial liability to equity. The shares have subsequently been issued.
Cash of USD $1,500,000 was also payable on achieving the targets of which, USD $1,014,000 has been paid and the balance of USD
$486,000 is held as a financial liability.
UltiSat earn-out
A short term liability of USD $4,486,000 is held representing working capital adjustments that are expected to be paid subject
to the successful recoverability of assets held on the opening balance sheet. Additional potential consideration of up to USD
$35,000,000 is payable dependent on the underlying performance of the business. USD $20,000,000 has become payable on the
achievement of underlying EBITDA targets for the year to 31 December 2017. These balances are disclosed as current liabilities –
other payables.
A maximum of USD $7,500,000 is payable on achieving revenue targets and a further maximum of USD $7,500,000 is payable on
achieving certain gross margin targets in the year to 31 December 2018. An amount of USD $13,879,000 representing the fair
value of this deferred contingent consideration, is included as non-current liabilities – other payables.
Outstanding legal cases arising from acquisition of Harris CapRock
The entities acquired as part of the Harris CapRock acquisition were subject to certain legal cases most significantly in relation to
employment law in Brazil and Angola. Adequate provision has been included in the financial statements to cover any exposure to
the Group that is not subject to indemnity by Harris Corporation.
Other than as noted above, the Group did not have any other material contingent assets or liabilities as at 31 December 2017.
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35 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

36 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
On 26 February 2018, the Board approved a final dividend of AUD 4.80 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
dividend will be paid on 23 May 2018 to all shareholders registered on the record date of 9 March 2018. The ex-dividend date for
dividend entitlement will be 8 March 2018. The dividend will be fully franked for Australian taxation purposes.
On 1 March 2018, 377,781 shares were issued in full settlement of the 2014 LTIP scheme and partial settlement of the RMR scheme.
Refer to note 12 for further details.
Other than the above, there have been no other material post balance sheet events since 31 December 2017.
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DIRECTOR'S DECLARATION
In the Directors’ opinion:
(a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 45 to 100 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i) complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting
requirements; and
(ii) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 31 December 2017 and of its performance for
the financial year ended on that date; and
(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable; and
(c) at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the extended closed group
identified in note 32 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or may become, subject by virtue of the
deed of cross guarantee described in note 32.
Note 2(a) confirms that the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.
The Directors have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Officer, in his capacity as both Chief Executive Officer and
Interim Chief Financial Officer, required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.
This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated on 29 March 2018.

Pierre-Jean Beylier
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director
29 March 2018

Speedcast ANNUAL REPORT 2017 | 101

102 | Speedcast ANNUAL REPORT 2017

INDEPENDANT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report
To the members of Speedcast International Limited

Report on the audit of the financial report
Our opinion
In our opinion:
The accompanying financial report of Speedcast International Limited (the Company) and its
controlled entities (together the Group) is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(a)

giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2017 and of its
financial performance for the year then ended

(b)

complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The Group financial report comprises:
x

the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2017

x

the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended

x

the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended

x

the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year then
ended

x

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies

x

the directors’ declaration.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
report section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant
to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 757
Level 11, 70 Franklin Street, ADELAIDE SA 5000, GPO Box 418, ADELAIDE SA 5001
T: +61 8 8218 7000, F: +61 8 8218 7999, www.pwc.com.au
/LDELOLW\OLPLWHGE\DVFKHPHDSSURYHGXQGHU3URIHVVLRQDO6WDQGDUGV/HJLVODWLRQ
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Our audit approach
An audit is designed to provide reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement. Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial report.
We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an
opinion on the financial report as a whole, taking into account the geographic and management
structure of the Group, its accounting processes and controls and the industry in which it operates.
The Group’s activities principally involve the provision of satellite bandwidth services to the maritime,
energy, government and enterprises and emerging markets. The Group has operations and entities in
many countries, including Australia, Hong Kong, United States of America and United Kingdom.

Materiality

x

For the purpose of our audit we used overall Group materiality of $3,000,000, which represents
approximately 2.5% of EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation) of
the Group excluding acquisition related revenue and expenses.

x

We chose to use EBITDA adjusted for acquisition related revenue and expense items as the
benchmark, because in our view, this is the metric against which, the performance of the Group is
most commonly measured. The adjustment to EBITDA for specific items of revenue and expense,
associated with acquisitions including transaction related costs, restructuring and integration
costs, seeks to remove the impact of items which are not expected to recur from year to year or
otherwise significantly affect the underlying trend of performance from continuing operations.

x

We utilised a 2.5% threshold based on our professional judgement, noting it is within the range of
commonly acceptable thresholds.

x

We applied this threshold, together with qualitative considerations, to determine the scope of our
audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements on the financial report as a whole.
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Audit scope
x

Our audit focused on areas where the Group made subjective judgements; for example, significant accounting
estimates involving assumptions and inherently uncertain future events.

x

The Group audit is planned and led by our Group audit team in Australia. We and component auditors in
Hong Kong, the United States of America and the United Kingdom conducted audit procedures over the
financial information of the most financially significant entities, which are based in Australia, Hong Kong, the
United States of America, the United Kingdom and Norway.

x

Additionally, the Group audit team performed specific risk focused audit procedures in relation to the
Group’s entities in Brazil and Angola. When determining where it was necessary to perform specific
procedures on the entities, we focused on entities recently acquired by the Group and where our planning
procedures identified specific areas of risk.

x

We note that outside the entities highlighted above, the Group includes other entities which individually do
not contribute materially to the overall Group result. We obtained an understanding of these entities and
performed analytical procedures over their financial balances.

x

Audit procedures were performed by the Group audit team over the consolidation process and balances
recorded at a Group level. The audit work carried out at entity level, together with the additional procedures
performed at Group level, in our view, provided us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion on the
Financial Report of the Group as a whole.

x

We ensured that the audit teams both at Group and at entity levels had the appropriate skills and
competencies. This included engaging specialists and experts to address aspects of our audit work in relation
to taxation and business combinations.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial report for the current period. The key audit matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Further, any commentary on the outcomes of a
particular audit procedure is made in that context.
Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition

We performed the following procedures:

(Refer to note 2(e) and note 6)

x

Speedcast have multiple revenue streams with
customers which can include the provision of
equipment, bandwidth services and related support
arrangements.

We developed an understanding of each
significant revenue stream, being broadband
access revenue and the sale of broadband services
equipment, and the basis used to recognise
revenue.

x

We tested a sample of revenue transactions to
evaluate whether they were appropriately
recorded as revenue. This included checking the
amounts recorded to supporting evidence.

x

For a sample of deferred revenue amounts we
checked whether the amount recognised in the
current period was consistent with services
supplied per the terms of the customer
agreement.

For many Speedcast operations, broadband access fees
related to bandwidth services are invoiced in advance
of service delivery and an adjustment is made at each
balance date by the Group so that amounts invoiced in
advance are not inappropriately recorded as revenue
prior to bandwidth access being supplied by Speedcast.
The adjustment recorded is material, as is revenue as a
whole, and as such revenue recognition was a key audit
matter.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Accounting for business combinations

For the Harris CapRock acquisition, we performed the
following procedures:

(Refer to note 2(d) and note 28)

x

Read the sale and purchase agreement to
identify any contingent purchase
consideration. No contingent consideration
was identified in the agreement that is
dependent upon achievement of operational
performance targets.

x

We agreed the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired to valuation reports
prepared by the Group’s valuation adviser or
separate Group calculations. The valuation
reports included discounted cash flow models
(the “models”) calculating the value of
customer relationship intangibles; above
market contracts for bandwidth supply and
other contracts at the date of acquisition.

x

For the customer relationship intangible
assets we performed the following:

Speedcast made two acquisitions in the current year
(Harris CapRock and UltiSat) and finalised the
accounting for the previous year’s acquisitions.
The purchase accounting for the Harris CapRock
acquisition has been completed.
The accounting for the UltiSat acquisition, which was
effective from 1 November 2017, is provisional at the
date of authorisation of the financial report.
The accounting for these business combinations was a
key audit matter given each acquisition was material to
the Group and involved significant judgements made
by the Group, including:
x

x

Estimation of the purchase consideration,
particularly in respect of contingent consideration
payable on the achievement of certain operational
performance targets. Such purchase consideration
is required by Australian Accounting Standards to
be recorded as a financial liability and
subsequently re-measured at each period end
based on the Group’s judgement on whether
operational performance targets will be met.
Estimation of the fair value of assets and liabilities
acquired, in particular customer relationships.
Under Australian Accounting Standards, the
Group is required to estimate the fair value of
assets and liabilities acquired. This estimate
involved making judgements over the value of
relationships acquired and the period over which
acquired customer relationships are expected to
provide benefit to Speedcast.

x

x

o

Assessed the underlying assumptions
used in the models, including
customer attrition rate and discount
rate;

o

Assessed whether the cash flow
inputs used in the models were
reasonable compared to actual
performance for 2017; and

o

Assessed the mathematical accuracy
of the models.

For the above market contracts for bandwidth
supply and other contracts we performed the
following:
o

Assessed the underlying assumptions
used in the models, including
agreeing the cash flow inputs to the
above market contract and market
rate data; and

o

Assessed whether the discount rate
used was appropriate.

For other significant fair value adjustments
not included in the valuation report, we
agreed the fair value of assets and liabilities to
the underlying calculations, and performed
the following:
o
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

x

o

Obtained and considered supporting
documentation; and

o

Obtained explanations from
individuals outside of Group finance.

We were assisted by valuation experts as
appropriate, including in relation to the
assessment of discount rates used.

For the UltiSat acquisition we performed the following
procedures:
x

Read the sale and purchase agreement to
identify any contingent purchase
consideration. We note that contingent
consideration is payable in relation to UltiSat
and is based on achieving future levels of
EBITDA, revenue and gross margin. The
maximum possible contingent consideration
was recorded as the Group determined it was
likely the amounts would be required to be
paid. We assessed the Group’s determination
by comparing their forecast amount to actual
and budgeted EBITDA, revenue and gross
margin for the forecast periods.

x

We assessed the Group’s provisional estimate
of the fair value of assets and liabilities
acquired including the Group’s basis for
determination of the customer relationship
balance and goodwill.

For the prior period acquisitions finalised in the
current year we developed an understanding of
variances from the provisional purchase price
accounting included in the financial report for the year
ended 31 December 2016. There were no material
variances noted.
Where there were costs incurred which were related to
acquisitions, we performed audit work to test that such
costs were expensed and not capitalised or included in
purchase consideration, as required by Australian
Accounting Standards.
Useful life of customer relationship intangible
assets

We performed the following procedures:
x

We developed an understanding of the accounting
policies and useful lives used by Speedcast in the
amortisation of customer relationship intangible
assets.

x

We assessed the financial performance of
operations with significant customer relationship
intangible assets to identify operations not
performing as expected at acquisition, which

(Refer to note 2(g) and note 18)
SpeedCast recognises intangible assets related to
customer relationships as a result of each acquisition.
The value of the customer relationship intangible assets
acquired is estimated with reference to the customer
base of the operations acquired, adjusted for any
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
indicates a higher risk that the useful life may
need to be changed.

customers expected to be lost following the acquisition.
The Group makes judgements at the time of each
acquisition related to how long acquired customers are
expected to remain with SpeedCast and therefore over
what useful life the customer relationship intangible
asset should be amortised. These judgements are
reassessed at each period end by comparing the level of
customer loss (“churn”) against the original
measurement assumptions to assess if the period over
which the customer relationships are being amortised
remains appropriate.

x

For each operation identified, we assessed the
level of customer churn and the extent of changes
in the customer base, to which the original
intangible related, in order to assess the
appropriateness of the useful life adopted.

The determination of the useful life of customer
relationship intangible assets was a key audit matter
due to the judgements involved and the impact on the
amortisation expense recorded in periods after
acquisition and the recorded carrying amount of
customer relationship intangible assets.
Tax effect accounting
(Refer to note 2(n), note 11 and note 19)
Speedcast operates in a number of countries, each with
different tax regimes. The Group is required to
understand the tax laws in each jurisdiction and
appropriately apply these to each entities’ tax
calculations and the overall Group tax position.

We performed the following procedures:
x

Identified key tax jurisdictions and balances
across Speedcast by developing an understanding
of the nature of the Group’s tax structure and key
controls in place to manage the Group’s tax
reporting requirements.

x

For those individual entities identified with
significant income tax expense or recorded tax
payable, we agreed the key inputs in the tax
calculations to the relevant general ledger balance
and assessed the appropriateness of:

The accounting for taxes was a key audit matter
because of the complexity associated with different tax
jurisdictions and judgements requiring consideration
when preparing the Group’s tax calculations. In
particular, we note there are:
x

Tax calculations for individual entities with
significant current or deferred tax recorded
during the period which are subject to different
tax jurisdictions and rules.

x

Consolidated tax models used to calculate the
Group tax balances which are manual and
complex in nature and therefore may have an
increased risk of error.

x

Deferred tax assets recorded by the Group, some
of which relate to tax losses, which require
judgement by the Group in assessing whether
there will enough future taxable profits in order
for these assets to be realised.

o

Permanent differences included in
the calculation of the income tax
expense; and

o

The accounting and tax bases
included in the calculation of
deferred tax assets and liabilities.

x

For the Group tax consolidation we agreed key
inputs to supporting documentation including
underlying entity tax calculations. We tested the
mathematical accuracy of the tax consolidation
model.

x

As part of our work we assessed the recoverability
of deferred tax balances in particular where
balances related to tax losses. In this case, we
performed the following:
o
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
o

Assessed the Group’s plans in
relation to the recovery of deferred
tax assets.

We were assisted by PwC tax experts and specialists in
performing our work over tax effect accounting.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Group's annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017, but does not
include the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon. Prior to the date of this auditor's report,
the other information we obtained included Director’s Report and Operating and Financial Review.
We expect the remaining other information to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report, including Chairman’s Letter and Chief Executive Officer’s Report.
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express an opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
When we read the other information not yet received as identified above, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the directors and use
our professional judgement to determine the appropriate action to take.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Corporations Act 2001 and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:
http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar1.pdf. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Report on the remuneration report
Our opinion on the remuneration report
We have audited the remuneration report included in the directors’ report for the year ended 31
December 2017.
In our opinion, the remuneration report of Speedcast International Limited for the year ended 31
December 2017 complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Responsibilities
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
remuneration report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Andrew Forman
Partner
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ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Additional information required by the ASX Limited Listing Rules and not disclosed elsewhere in this report is set out below. This
information is effective as at 4 April 2018.

SECURITIES EXCHANGE
The Company is listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

VOTING RIGHTS
Ordinary shares
On a show of hands, every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each share
shall have one vote.
Options
No voting rights

UNISSUED SECURITIES
Options issued 1,448,682

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Substantial shareholders as disclosed in substantial shareholder notices given to the Company are as follows:
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DISTRIBUTION OF EQUITY SECURITY HOLDERS

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY
DIRECTORS
Mr. John Angus Mackay (Chairman)
Mr. Pierre-Jean Joseph Andre Beylier
Mr. Michael Stuart Berk
Mr. Grant Scott Ferguson
Mr. Peter Edward Jackson
Mr. Michael Malone
Mr. Edward Francis Sippel

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Andrew Metcalfe

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The Annual General Meeting of Speedcast International
Limited will be held at:
InterContinental Hotel Sydney
117 Macquarie Street, Sydney, New South Wales
2000 Australia
Time: 9am (Sydney local time)
Date: Thursday, 17 May 2018

REGISTERED OFFICE
Suite 4F, 12 Lord Street, Botany, NSW, 2019, Australia

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
SpeedCast Headquarters
Unit 4F, Level 1, Lakes Business Park,
12 Lord Street, Botany NSW 2019, Australia

SHARE REGISTRY
Link Market Services Limited
Tower 4, 727 Collins Street
Docklands, VIC 3008
Internet : www.linkmarketservices.com.au
Email : info@linkmarketservices.com.au
Telephone : +61 1300 554 474

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Speedcast International Limited shares are listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) under the ASX code SDA.

WEBSITE
www.speedcast.com
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